
AGENDA
CITY OF FALLON - CITY COUNCIL

55 West Williams Avenue

Fallen, Nevada
December 20, 2021 - 9:00 a.m.

The Honorable City Council will meet in a regularly scheduled meeting on December 20, 2021 at
9:00 a.m. in the City Council Chambers, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallen, Nevada.

Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. The Council may combine two or more agenda
items for consideration. The Council may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion
relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Unless otherwise allowed by the City Council, public
comments by an individual will be limited to three minutes.

1. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

2. Certification of Compliance with Posting Requirements.

3. Public Comments: General in nature, not relative to any agenda items.
No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item until the matter has been
specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken. (For
discussion only)

4 Approval of Warrants: (For possible action)

A) Accounts Payable
B) Payroll
C) Customer Deposit

5. Public hearing for Bill No. 787: An ordinance amending Title 2, Chapter 2.04, Section
2.04.040 of the City ofFallon Municipal Code for the purpose of changing the days of
the regular meetings of the Fallen City Council, and for other matters properly related
thereto. (For discussion only)

6. Consideration and possible adoption of Bill No. 787 as Ordinance No. 768: An ordinance
amending Title 2, Chapter 2. 04, Section 2. 04.040 of the City of Fallen Municipal Code
for the purpose of changing the days of the regular meetings of the Fallen City Council,
and for other matters properly related thereto. (For possible action)

7. Consideration and possible approval of a Tentative Subdivision Map for Phases 6-8 of
Country Air Estates. (For possible action)

8. Possible adoption of Resolution No. 21 -09: A resolution to change the three (3) ward
boundaries embracing the territory within the corporate limits of the City of Fallen, and
for other matters properly related thereto. (For possible action)



9. Fallen Police Department Monthly Report for November 2021 (For discussion only)

10. Executive Session (closed):

Discuss Litigation Matters (For discussion only) (NRS 241 et. seq.)
Negotiations with Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 (For discussion only)
Negotiations with Fallon Peace Officers Association (For discussion only)

11. Consideration and possible action to approve negotiated agreement between the City of
Fallen and the Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 to be effective from July 1, 2021
to June 30, 2024. (Pursuant to NRS 288. 153, the proposed agreement and any exhibits or
other attachments to the proposed agreement are available to the public on the City's
website, fallonnevada.gov, and at the City Clerk's Office, 55 West Williams Avenue,
Fallen, Nevada.) (For possible Action)

12. Consideration and possible action to approve negotiated agreement between the City of
Fallen and the Fallen Peace Officers Association to be effective from July 1, 2021 to
June 30, 2024. (Pursuant to NRS 288. 153, the proposed agreement and any exhibits or
other attachments to the proposed agreement are available to the public on the City's
website, fallonnevada.gov, and at the City Clerk's Office, 55 West Williams Avenue,
Fallen, Nevada.) (For possible action)

13. Public Comments (For discussion only)

14. Council and Staff Reports (For discussion only)

This agenda has been posted on or before 9:00 a.m. on December 15, 2021 at City Hall, District
Court Building, Churchill County Office Complex, Churchill County Public Library and posted to
the City's website (https://fallonnevada. gov) and the State of Nevada public notice websitc
(https://notice.nv.gov/). Members of the public may request the supporting material for this
meeting by contacting Elsie M. Lee, Deputy City Clerk, City Clerk's Office, City Hall, 55 West
Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada, (775) 423-5104. The supporting material for this meeting is
also available to the public on the City's website (https://fallonnevada.gov) and the State of Nevada
public notice website (https://notice.nv.gov/).

^
Elsie M.'Lee^

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: Reasonable effort will be made to assist and
accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring to attend the meeting. Please call the City
Clerk's Office at 423-5104 in advance so that arrangements may be conveniently made.



December 20, 2021

Agenda Item 5

Public hearing for Bill No. 787: An ordinance

amending Title 2, Chapter 2. 04, Section 2. 04. 040
of the City of Fallen Municipal Code for the
purpose of changing the days of the regular
meetings of the Fallen City Council, and for other
matters properly related thereto. (For discussion
only)



CITY OF FALLON
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Agenda Item No.

DATE SUBMITTED: December 10, 2021

AGENDA DATE REQUESTED: December 20, 2021

TO: The Honorable City Council

FROM: Trent deBraga, Deputy City Attorney

SUBJECT TITLE: Public hearing for Bill No. 787: An ordinance amending Title 2, Chapter
2. 04, Section 2. 04. 040 of the City of Fallen Municipal Code for the purpose of changing the days
of the regular meetings of the Fallen City Council, and for other matters properly related thereto.
(For discussion only)

( ) Resolution
( ) Formal Action/Motion

( X) Ordinance
( ) Other

POSSIBLE COUNCIL ACTION: None in this agenda item, it is for public hearing for Bill
No. 787 only.

DISCUSSION: Bill No. 787 was introduced at the Council's properly noticed regular meeting on
December 6, 2021. Notice of the deposit of copies of the proposed ordinance and the public
hearing date was duly published in the Lahontan Valley News on December 8, 2021. The
proposed ordinance, as introduced, and the Proof and Statement of Publication of the Notice of
Deposit of Copies and Public Hearing to Adopt Bill No. 787 are attached to this coversheet. This
agenda item represents the public's opportunity to comment on the proposed ordinance and to
present relevant information and materials to the Council.

PREPARED BY: Trent deBraga, Deputy City Attorney



ahontan
VALLEY NEWS

Proof and Statement of Publication

AD #: 19413

HIVINO MLLQN AND PBINLEY AND FALLON EABLE STANOARD

580 Mallory Way, Suite 200, Carson City, NV
89701 PO Box 648, Carson City, NV 89702

(775) 881-1201 FAX: (775) 887-2408

Customer Account #: 2253

Legal Account

CITY OF FALLON

55 W Williams Ave

Fallon, NV 89406

Matt Speers says:
That he is a legal clerk of the
Lahontan Valley News
a newspaper published Wednesday at
Fallon, in the State of Nevada.

Copy Line
12/8 LVN Adopt Bill 787

P0#:

AD #: 19413

of which a copy is hereto attached, was published
in said newspaper for the full required period of 1
time(s) commencing on 12/08/2021
and ending on, 12/08/2021
all days inclusive.

Signed:

Statement:

Date Amount Credit Balance

12/08/21 111. 50 0, 00 111. 50



legals-
co-

.egals-
churchill co.

City of Fallon
Notice of Deposit of Copies and Public

Hearing to Adopt Bill No. 787

Notice is hereby given that the Honorable
City Council of the City of Fallen will hold
a Public Hearing on Monday, December
20, 2021 at 9:00 a. m. in the City Council
Chambers, City Hall, 55 West Williams
Avenue, Fallen, Nevada 89406, to consider
possible adoption of Bill No. 787.

The Bill, if adopted as an Ordinance, will
accomplish the following: An ordinance
amending Title 2, Chapter 2. 04, Section
2. 04. 040 of the City of Fallen Municipal
Code, to set the regular meetings of the
City Council on the first and third Tuesdays
of each month, at the hour of 9:00 a. m.,
and for other matters properly related
thereto.

Notice is hereby further given that copies
of the Bill have been deposited with the
City Clerk, City Hall, 55 West Williams
Avenue, Fallon, Nevada 89406, for public
examination and distribution upon request.
Members of the public may request a copy
of the Bill by contacting Elsie Lee, Deputy
City Clerk, at (775) 423-5104 or
elee(5)fallonnevada. aov.

Date: December 1, 2021
Sean Richardson

City Clerk-Treasurer

Pub Date: December 8, 2021
Ad #19413



BILL NO. 787 ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 2, CHAPTER 2.04, SECTION 2.04. 040 OF
THE CFTY OF FALLON MUNICIPAL CODE FOR THE PURPOSE OF CHANGING
THE DAYS OF THE REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE FALLON CITY COUNCIL;
AND FOR OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY RELATED THERETO.

***********D. #*»

WHEREAS, NRS 266.245 requires the City Council to prescribe by ordinance the
time and place of its regular meetings; and

WHEREAS, NRS 266. 245 further requires the City Council to hold at least one (1)
regular meeting each month; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has previously prescribed by ordinance that its regular
meetings shall be held on the first and third Mondays of each month at the hour of
9:00 a.m.; and

WHEREAS, said regular meeting days and times are codified in Section 2.04.040 of
the City of Fallen Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to change its regular meeting days in order to
more efficiendy and effectively address the matters brought before the Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Fallen do ordain that Title 2,
Chapter 2.04, Section 2.04.040 of the City of Fallen Municipal Code be amended to read, in its
entirety, as follows:

Chapter 2.04

THE LEGISLATFVE BRANCH

2.04.040 Time ofReeular Meetings. The City Council shall hold regular meetings on the first
and third Tuesdays of each month, at the hour of 9:00 a.m., unless the City Council, in its
discretion, prescribes a different day or time to hold a regular meeting, or prescribes to cancel a
regular meeting, so long as the City Council holds at least one (1) regular meeting each month,
and gives proper notice of the different day or time or cancellation in accordance with law. When
a regular meeting day falls on a legal holiday, the regular meeting shall be held at the same time
on die first day that City offices are open next following the legal holiday.

This ordinance shall become effective after its passage, approval and publication as
required by law.

Proposed by:.

-1



Passed and adopted this _ day of December, 2021.

Those voting aye:.

Those voting nay:.

Those absent:.

Those abstaining:.

KENTEDFORD
Mayor

ATTEST:.
SEANRICHARDSON
City Clerk-Treasurer

-2



December 20, 2021

Agenda Item 6

Consideration and possible adoption of Bill No.
787 as Ordinance No. 768: An ordinance amending
Title 2, Chapter 2.04, Section 2. 04.040 of the City
of Fallen Municipal Code for the purpose of
changing the days of the regular meetings of the
Fallen City Council, and for other matters properly
related thereto. (For possible action)



CITY OF FALLON
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

fcAgenda Item No.

DATE SUBMITTED: December 10, 2021

AGENDA DATE REQUESTED: December 20, 2021

TO: The Honorable City Council

FROM: Trent deBraga, Deputy City Attorney

SUBJECT TITLE: Consideration and possible adoption of Bill No. 787 as Ordinance No. 768:
An ordinance amending Title 2, Chapter 2.04, Section 2.04.040 of the City ofFallon Municipal
Code for the puqrose of changing the days of the regular meetings of the Fallen City Council,
and for other matters properly related thereto. (For possible action)

( ) Resolution
( ) Formal Action/Motion

( X) Ordinance
( ) Other

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to adopt Bill No. 787 as Ordinance No. 768:
An ordinance amending Title 2, Chapter 2. 04, Section 2. 04. 040 of the City ofFallon Municipal
Code for the purpose of changing the days of the regular meetings of the Fallen City Council,
and for other matters properly related thereto.

DISCUSSION: This agenda item represents the Council's opportunity to consider the proposed
ordinance as they see fit. The Council is free to adopt the Bill as introduced or to amend the Bill,
in any respect, prior to its adoption. The proposed ordinance, as introduced, is attached to this
coversheet.

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A.

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A.

PREPARED BY: Trent deBraga, Deputy City Attorney



BILL NO. 787 ORDINANCE NO. 768

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 2, CHAPTER 2.04, SECTION 2. 04. 040 OF
THE CITY OF FALLON MUNICIPAL CODE FOR THE PURPOSE OF CHANGING
THE DAYS OF THE REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE FALLON CITY COUNCIL;
AND FOR OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY RELATED THERETO.

********SK***;i;**

WHEREAS, NRS 266. 245 requires the City Council to prescribe by ordinance the
time and place of its regular meetings; and

WHEREAS, NRS 266. 245 further requires the City Council to hold at least one (1)
regular meeting each month; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has previously prescribed by ordinance that its regular
meetings shall be held on the first and third Mondays of each month at the hour of
9:00 a. m. ; and

WHEREAS, said regular meeting days and times are codified in Section 2. 04. 040 of
the City of Fallen Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to change its regular meeting days in order to
more efficiently and effectively address the matters brought before the Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Fallon do ordain that Title 2,
Chapter 2. 04, Section 2. 04. 040 of the City of Fallen Municipal Code be amended to read, in its
entirety, as follows:

Chapter 2.04

THE LEGISLATIVE BRANCH

2.04. 040 Time of Regular Meetings. The City Council shall hold regular meetings on the first
and third Tuesdays of each month, at the hour of 9:00 a.m., unless the City Council, in its
discretion, prescribes a different day or time to hold a regular meeting, or prescribes to cancel a
regular meeting, so long as the City Council holds at least one (1) regular meeting each month,
and gives proper notice of the different day or time or cancellation in accordance with law. When
a regular meeting day falls on a legal holiday, the regular meeting shall be held at the same time
on the first day that City offices are open next following the legal holiday.

This ordinance shall become effective after its passage, approval and publication as
required by law.

Proposed by: Councilman Richardson.



Passed and adopted this day of December, 2021.

Those voting aye:.

Those voting nay:.

Those absent:

Those abstaining:.

KEN TEDFORD
Mayor

ATTEST.
SEAN RICHARDSON
City Clerk-Treasurer

-2-



December 20, 2021

Agenda Item 7

Consideration and possible approval of a Tentative
Subdivision Map for Phases 6-8 of Country Air
Estates. (For possible action)



CITY OF FALLON
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Agenda Item No.

DATE SUBMITTED: December 13, 2021

AGENDA DATE REQUESTED: December 20, 2021

TO: The Honorable City Council

FROM: Derek Zimney, City Engineer

SUBJECT TITLE: Consideration and possible approval of a Tentative Subdivision Map for Phases
6-8 of Country Air Estates. (For possible action)

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: (Check one)

( ) Resolution
(x) Formal Action/Motion

( ) Ordinance
( ) Other

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to approve a Tentative Subdivision Map for
Phases 6-8 of Country Air Estates.

DISCUSSION; This map would be the first step in creating thirty-nine (39) new single family
lots. The construction of the proposed improvements will complete the Country Air Estates
subdivision.

The City of Fallen City Council first approved a tentative for Country Air Estates in 1988. That
map was for 162 lots. Only 86 lots have been completed in phases 1 through 5. The remainder
have been redesigned with this tentative map. If approved and constructed, Country Air Estates
will have 125 of the originally planned 162 lots. The proposed improvements are being proposed
to be completed in three phases.

This map has been reviewed by Derek Zimney - City Engineer, Brian Byrd - Public Works
Director and Bob Erickson - Chief of Staff. Letters of intent and copies of the proposed tentative
map have been submitted to the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection, Nevada
Division of Water Resources, Truckee-Carson Irrigation District, Churchill County and the
Churchill County School District. Those letters and responses from each agency are attached.

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A - Water Rights Fees to be paid at Final Map stage.
FUNDING SOURCE: N/A
PREPARED BY: Derek Zimney, City Engineer
DATE: December 20, 2021
TO BE PRESENTED TO THE COUNCIL BY: Derek Zimney, City Engineer



Ken Tedford
MAYOR

\S Of

0

Incorporated 1908

September 14, 2021

State of Nevada

Nevada Department of Environmental Protection
901 S. Stewart Street #4001

Carson City, NV 89701

Attn: Tammara Weaver, Compliance Coordinator

RE: Tentative Map Submittal - Country Air Estates

James D. Richardson
Councilman

Kelly Frost
Councilwoman

Karla Kent
Councilwoman

Mrs. Weaver,

Pursuit to N. R. S. 278. 335 I am submitting this Tentative Map for your review on behalf of the City of
Fallen City Council who acts as the Planning Commission. Please feel free to contact me with any
question or comments.

Sincerely,

n.
Derek Zimney P.E., City Engineer
City of Fallen

City of Fallen » 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallen, Nevada 89406 . Phone (775) 423-3040 - fallonnevada. gov



Ken Tedford
MAYOR

August 16, 2021

\& 0^

IncorpOEBted I*»( 

Tammara Weaver

Compliance Coordinator
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources
901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 4001

RE: Planning Commission Authorization

James D. Richardson
Councilman

Kelly Frost
Councilwoman

Karla Kent
Councilwoman

Mrs. Weaver,

Per the CityofFallon Municipal Code Chapter 21.12.010 the City Council acts as the Pianning
Commission.

Please allow this letter to serve as authorization for the City ofFallon Engineer to submit tentative
maps to NDEP on behalf of the City Council members who act as the Planning Commission, as a
designated representative pursuant to N.R.S. 278. 335.

Sincerely,

James j&TRflfhardsoA - C&uacilman

^=w
KellvTrost - Councilwoman

Karia Kent '"Cbuncilwoman

City ofFallon ° 55 West Williams Avenue, FaIIon, Nevada 89406 c Phone (775) 423-3040 . falloimevada. gov



\S Of

Ken Tedford
MAYOR

September 14, 2021

State of Nevada

Nevada Department of Environmental Protection
901 S. Stewart Street #4001
Carson City, NV 89701

Attn: Tammara Weaver, Compliance Coordinator

RE: Historical usage description - Country Air Estates

James D. Richardson
Councihnan

Kelly Frost
Councilwoman

Karia Kent
Councilwoman

Mrs. Weaver,

This land was historically used for agricultural purposes. City staff is un-aware of any significant
existing environmental degradation that could negatively affect the proposed project.

Sincerely,

c^ \^~)
^ y

Derek Zimney P.E., City Engineer
City of Fallen

City of Fallen 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallen, Nevada 89406 . Phone (775) 423-3040 » fallonnevada. gov



\S Of

Ken Tedford
MAYOR

James D. Richardson
Councilman

Kelly Frost
Councilwoman

Karla Kent
Councilwoman

Incorporated 1908

September 14, 2021

State of Nevada

Nevada Department of Environmental Protection
901 S. Stewart Street #4001

Carson City, NV 89701

Attn: Tammara Weaver, Compliance Coordinator

RE: Intent to Serve- Country Air Estates

Mrs. Weaver,

Upon City Council approval, the City of Fallen intends to serve water, sewer, electric and garbage to
the above referenced subdivision. The capacities of the respective systems and facilities are
adequate to serve the proposed development. The proposed development includes thirty-nine (39)
single family residential lots. This subdivision will include phases 6 through 8,

The City of FaIIon had issued will serve letters for this development in 1988. The commitment was
for 162 lots. Only 86 lots were completed in phases 1 through 5. The remainder have been
redesigned with this tentative map. In total Country Air Estates will have 125 of the originally
planned 162 lots.

This intent to serve is conditioned on approval from the City of Fallen City Council and the
compliance of all standards and regulations as set forth in the Fallon Municipal Code and adopted
building codes.

Sincere!^

^
Derek Zimney P.E., City Engineer
City of Fallen

^ ^

City of Fallen ' 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallen, Nevada 89406 . Phone (775) 423-3040 B falloimevada. gov



^:
NEVADA DIVISION OF

 

@TIICTO]K;

STATE OF NEVADA
Department of Conservation & Natural Resources

. -\J

Reuuirements for theRevjew of a Tentative SubdivisioiiMap in Rural Counties

A tentative map may only be submitted for review by the planning commission or a representative that
has been authorized to submit the tentative map on behalf of the planning commission per NRS 278.330

[~~| 1. Provide the tentative subdivision map showing the design of the subdivision, including the arrangement
of lots, the alignment of roads, and easements - each sheet must be individually wet-stamped, signed,
and dated in ncm-black ink by a Professional Land Surveyor or Engineer registered m Nevada.

[_] 2. A check payable to the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection or NDEP for $400. 00 + $3.00 per
lot.

Q 3. If fhe tentative map is being submitted on behalf of the planning commission, a letter designating
authorization from the planning commission must be submitted to the NDEP.

)] 4. Provide a letter from the drinking water utility and the wastewater utility stating the availability and
accessibility of utilities ("Intent-to-Serve") per NRS 278.349(3c) or supply a "Will-Serve" letter,

5. On the Title Page or Cover Sheet:

I] a. Provide the subdivision's location by section, township, and range or any other description
which provides a positive identification of the location of the subdivision.

j[ b. Provide a vicinity map showing the nearest city and/or major highway.
Ij c. Provide the names and addresses of the owners and developers oftfae subdivision.
jj d. Indicate fhe type of water system and source (individual well or public water system).
j) e. Indicate the type of proposed wastewater system (community or individual sewage disposal

systems).

I) f. Indicate the number of lots in the subdivision.
f~-j g. State distance between the subdivision and any existing water and wastewater utilities.
I) 6. Provide a map showing the topographic features of the subdivision, including contours at intervals of 2

feet for slopes of 10% or less, and intervals of 5 feet for slopes over 10%.

Ij 7. Provide a map of the 100-year floodplaia for the applicable area. The map must have been prepared by
recognized methods or by an appropriate governmental agency for those areas subject to flooding.

Ij g. Provide a master plan showing the future development and intended use of all land under the ownership
or control of the developer in the vicinity of the proposed subdivision.

I[ 9. Provide a brief description regarding the historical usage of the property or any significant existing
environmental degradation that could negatively affect the proposed project.

A letter recominendmg approval or denial of the tentative map will be sent to the related planning agency within
fifteen (15) calendar days of the receipt of the complete subnuttal. Copies of the letter will be sent to the owner
of the development and the consulting firm that prepared the tentative map submiftal.

901 S. Slewart S-treet, Suite 4001 c Carson City, Nevada 89701 ° p: 775. 687 4G70 " f: 773. 687.5856 -- ndep. nv. gov
Printed on recycled paper



h'LVADADEV:SiO,K)i ^.^rj Qr
Department of Conservation & Natural Resources

Steve Sisclpk. Cuvi-rnsr

Bradley Croiveii, Kii-ecior

Greg Lu\/ato, Administiqtor

October 28, 2021

DerekZimney, P. E.

City Engineer, City of Fallen
55 West Williams Ave.
Fallon NV 89406

Re Tentative Map - County Air Estates Phases 6-8
40 lots the City of Fallon

Dear Mr. Zimney, P. E.:

The Nevada Division of Environmental Protection has reviewed the above referenced subdivision and
recommends approval of said subdivision with respect to water pollution and sewage disposal, provided
that the City of Fallen commits to provide sewage service to said subdivision.

Please note that if the developei_of this subdivision will disturb more than one acre, he/she is required to
obtain coverage under NDEP's Construction Stormwater General Permit NVR100000. A Notice of Intent
must be filed electronicallyand submitted with a $200 fee prior to commencing any earth-cfisturbing
activities at the site. Visit NDEP's Bureau of Water Pollution Control's website at:
httD://ndep. nv. aov/bwDC/stonn cont03. htm for more information about this permit.

Sincerely,

April Holt, P. E.
Technical Services Branch
Bureau of Water Pollution Control

ec:

BUREAU OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS SUPERFUND PROGRAM MANAGER BCA, 901 S. Stewart St.
Ste. 4001 CARSON CITY, NV 89701 -------.,
Engineer: Robison Engineering 846 Victorian Ave #20 Sparks NV 89431
Developer: JKG Builders 115 Katie Drive Spring Creek NV 89815

Control No. 14261

901 S. Stewart Street, Suii'e 4001 ° Carson :ity, Nevada 89701
prmudon recycfed pap3r

p: 775,687,4570 ° f: 775.687.5856 ° ndep. nv.gov



Ken Tedford
MAYOR

Incorporated 1908

September 14, 2021

State of Nevada
Nevada Division of Water Resources

901 S. Stewart Street #2002
Carson City, NV 89701

Attn: Steve Shell, Water Resource Specialist 2

RE: Intent to Serve - Country Air Estates

James D. Richardson
Councilman

Kelly Frost
Councilwoman

Karia Kent
Councilwoman

Mr. Shell,

?3u^suit^I^R's:2.,78'?30 Iam s?^ttin^thi! Tentative MaP for y°ur review on behalf of the City of
Fallen City Council who acts as the Planning Commission. Please feel free to contact me with,
question or comments.

Sincerely,

^-Ll-i-
Derek Zimney P.E., City Engineer
City of Fallen

City of Fallen ' 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallen, Nevada 89406 . Phone (775) 423-3040 . fallonnevada. gov



Ken Tedford
MAYOR

James D. Richardson
Councilman

Kelly Frost
Councilwoman

Karla Kent
Councilwoman

Incorporated 1908

September 14, 2 021

State of Nevada

Nevada Division of Water Resources

901 S. Stewart Street #2002
Carson City, NV 89701

Attn: Steve Shell, Water Resource Specialist 2

RE: Intent to Serve - Country Air Estates

Mr. Shell,

Upon City Council approval, the City of Fallen intends to serve water, sewer, electric and garbage to
the above referenced subdivision. The capacities of the respective systems and facilities are
adequate to serve the proposed development. The proposed development includes thirty-nine [39}
single family residential lots. This subdivision will include phases 6 through 8.

The City of Fallen had issued will serve letters for this development in 1988. The commitment was
for 162 lots. Only 86 lots were completed in phases 1 through 5. The remainder have been
redesigned with this tentative map. In total Country Air Estates will have 125 of the originally
planned 162 lots.

This intent to serve is conditioned on approval from the City of Fallen City Council and the
compliance of all standards and regulations as set forth in the Fallen Municipal Code and adopted
building codes.

Sincecely,

Derek Zimney P.E., Cfty Enfeirieer
City of Fallen

City of Fallen . 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallen, Nevada 89406 . Phone (775) 423-3040 " fallonnevada. gov



STEVE SISOLAK
Governor

STATE OF NEVADA

To:

Re:

Name:

County:

Location:

Plat:

BRADLEY CROWELL
Director

ADAM SULLIVAN, P.E.
State Engineer

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES

901 South Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701-5250

(775) 684-2800 . Fax (775) 684-2811
http://water. nv. gov

December 3, 2021

Derek Zinrney, P.E., City Manager
City ofFallon
55 West Williams Avenue
Fallen, NV 89406

Tentative Subdivision Review No 21181 T, Permit None

Country Air Estates Phases 6-8

Churchill County - Fallon, U. S. Highway 50 and Indian Lakes Road

A portion of Section 29, Township 19 North, Range 29, East, MDB&M.

Final: Forty (40) lots, common areas, and rights-of-way totaling approximately
16.49 acres and being Churchill County Assessor's Parcel Number 001-061-29.

Water Service
Commitment

Allocation: 44. 80 acre-feet annually is the estimated requirement from the City of Fallen based
on a demand of 1. 12 acre-feet annually per single family home. No water has been
allocated for this tentative map.

Owner- JKG Builders
Developer: 115 Katie Drive

Spring Creek, NV 89815

Engineer: Robison Engineering
846 Victorian Avenue

Sparks, NV 89431



City of Fallen
December 3, 2021
Page 2

Water
Supply:

General:

Action:

CityofFallon

A subdivision map was presented and approved by this office on December 3, 2021,
as described on the Country Air Estates Phases 6-8 map.

Correspondence dated September 14, 2021, from the City of Fallen and signed by
Derek Zimney, P. E., City Engineer, to the Division of Water Resources states that
the City of Fallen intends to serve water to the subject subdivision. This letter is a
matter of public record on file in the Office of Division of Water Resources.

As provided in Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 278. 377, a copy of this certificate
must be furnished to the subdivider who in turn shall provide a copy of the
certificate to each purchaser of land before the time the sale is completed. Any
statement of approval is not a warranty or representation in favor of any person as
to the safety or quantity of such water.

Approval concerning water quantity as required by statute for Country Air Estates
Phases 6-8 subdivision will be based on acceptance of a Water Will Serve the City
of Fallen.

Best regards,

^^^ ^^C
Dan Randies

Supervisor III, Water Rights
DR/km
ec: Division of Real Estate

Public Utilities Commission of Nevada

Robison Engineering
JKG Builders



Ken Tedford
MAYOR

Incorporated 1908

September 14, 2021

Truckee-Carson Irrigation District
2666 Harrigan Road
Fallen, NV 89406

Attn: Rusty Jardine, Genera] Manager and Counsel

RE: Tentative Map Submittal - Country Air Estates

James D. Richardson
Councilman

Kelly Frost
Councilwoman

Karla Kent
Councilwoman

Mr. Jardine,

PursuittoN^ 278. 348 I am submitting this Tentative Map for your review on behalf of the Citv of
Fallon City Council who arts as the Planning Commission. Please fee] free to contact me witF;
question or comments.

Sincerely,

Derek Zimney P.E., fflty Engineer
City of Fallen

Via hand delivery

City of Fallen ° 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallen, Nevada 89406 ° Phone (775) 423-3040 . fallonnevada. gov



Derek Zimney

From:
Sent:

To:
Cc:
Subject:

Sadie Pope <sadie@tcid. org>
Thursday, October 07, 2021 7:22 AM
Derek Zimney
ida@tcid. org; cody@tcid. org
Country Air Estates Tentative Map

Good morning Derek,

Sorry on the delay getting back to you on the above referenced map. At this time we have no concerns on the map.
Moving forward on this project you will need to apply to TCID and BOR regarding the district facilities involved.

When the final map is ready please submit back to the district for signature.

If you have any questions please give us a call.

Sadie Pope
Truckee- Carson Irrigation District
2666 Harrigan Rd.
P. O. Box 1356
Fallon, NV 89406
775-423-2141
775-423-5354 FAX



Ken Tedford
MAYOR

September 14, 2021

Incorporated 1908

Churchill County

Public Works, Planning and Zoning Department
155 North Taylor Street
Fallen, NV 89406

Attn: Chris Spross, Public Works Director

RE: Tentative Map Submittal - Country Air Estates

James D. Richardson
Councilman

Kelly Frost
Councilwomaja

Karla Kent
Councilwoman

Mr. Spross,

Pursuit to N. R. S. 278. 345 I am submitting this Tentative Map for your review on behalf of the City of
Fallon City Council who acts as the Planning Commission. Please feel free to contact me with any
question or comments.

Sincerely,

Derek Zimney P.E.,' City Bngineer
CityofFalIon

Via hand delivery

City of Fallen " 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallen, Nevada 89406 c Phone (775) 423-3040 » fallonnevada. gov



Derek

From:
Sent:

To:
Cc:
Subject:

Dean Patterson <DPatterson@churchillcountynv. gov>
Thursday, November 04, 202111.-09AM
Derek Zimney
Christian Spross
Country Air Estates Phases 6-8 Subdivision Tentative Map

Derek Zimney P. E., City Engineer
City of Fallen

Mr. Zimney,

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Country Air Estates Phases 6-8 Subdivision Tentative Map. We
generally do not have issues with the proposed development. Our only comment would be to encourage consideration
of how Country Air Estates will connect to surrounding lands as they are developed and annexed in terms of sewer.
water, and roads. In this case, a logical growth area would be to the south - land that is currently owned by the school
district. The proposed subdivision does not provide service connections to the south boundary, so the City may wish to
consider that in its decision.

Dean Patterson, Churchill County Public Works, Planning, & Zoning
Off. 775-423-762711 Dir. 775-428-0256 || Dlannina-aDiachurchillcountv. ora
15S N. Taylor, Suite 94, Fallen NV B9406



Ken Tedford
MAYOR

Incorporated 1908

September 14, 2021

Churchill County School District
Office of the Superintendent
690 South Maine Street

Fallon, NV 89406

Attn: Dr. Summer Stephens, Superintendent

RE: Tentative Map Submittal - Country Air Estates

James D. Richardson
Councilman

Kelly Frost
Councilwoman

Karla Kent
Councilwoman

Dr. Stephens,

^sui^^R"^ 2Ja?46 Iam s^b"^,ttin^thisTentative MaP for your review on behalf of the City of
Fallen City Council who acts as the Planning Commission. Please fee] free to contact me with ,
question or comments.

Sincerely,

Derek Zimney P.E., City Engineer
City of Fallen

Via hand delivery

City of Fallen . 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallen, Nevada 89406 - Phone (775) 423-3040 » fallonnevada. gov



Kno". '.'/hat's below.
Call before you dig.

COUNTY AIR ESTATES
PHASES 6-8 TENTATIVE MAP

FOR

ROCK HOUND INVESTMENTS

APPROVED BY:

«) 4

ltjl
1^
I") p
lui ?
k z
15S
|^3
h a
Z uj

Ill
0 5:

s

MATERIAL
(ROOFING, ETC. I. WTrHOjre<CEPTION. SHALLBEOFEERED. FORRBIIBM.
APPROVAL TO QVME6PRIO&TOTHBR INCORPORATION im-OTHE PROJECT. WERE



COUNTRY AIR ESTATES
UNITS 6, 7, &: 8

,.. I" ,.. I- ,». r ,.. r , «» r

TENTA TiyE SUBDiyiSIQNMAP
COUNtKYAiRESfAfES~U~NITS6,"7, & S

1 1



COUNTRY AIR ESTATES

PHASES 6-8 TENTATIVE MAP



December 20, 2021

Agenda Item 8

Possible adoption of Resolution No. 21-09: A
resolution to change the three (3) wara boundaries
embracing the territory within the corporate limits
of the City ofFallon, and for other matters properly
related thereto. (For possible action)



CITY OF FALLON
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Agenda Item No.

DATE SUBMITTED: December 13, 2021

AGENDA DATE REQUESTED: December 20, 2021

TO: The Honorable City Council

FROM: Sean Richardson, City Clerk-Treasurer

SUBJECT TITLE: Possible adoption of Resolution No. 21-09: A resolution to change the three
(3) ward boundaries embracing the territory within the corporate limits of the City of Fallen, and
for other matters properly related thereto. (For possible action)

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: (Check One)

(X) Resolution
( ) Formal Action/Motion

( ) Ordinance
( ) Other

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: Adoption of Resolution No. 21-09: A resolution to
change the three (3) ward boundaries embracing the territory within the corporate limits of the
City ofFallon, and for other matters properly related thereto.

DISCUSSION: Nevada Revised Statute 266. 095 and Fallen Municipal Code 2. 20. 070 governs
the"change of ward boundaries and requires the boundaries ofthe wards to be chmgedwhenewr
tiie popuTation, as determined by the last preceding National Deceimial Census^onductedb^the
Bureau ofthe Census of the United States Department of Commerce, in any ward exceeds the
populationTn any other ward by more than five percent (5%). Fallon Municipal^ Code
2. 20. 070(C) specifically provides that the change in ward boundaries shall be made by resolution
ofthecityCo'imcil. 'Furthermore, NRS 266. 095 and FMC 2. 20. 070 allows^ie City Council to^
chaiige'the boundaries of the wards by any measure found reliable by the City Council City :
has found the population of the existing ward boundaries in the city exceed others by 5%
reqmnng~the~bo~undaries of the existing wards to be changed. By adoptingtheresokltion'the new
ward boundaries will be established and will bring the population of each ward within five
percent (5%) of each other.

The population of the current ward boundaries are as follows:
. Ward 1 (3, 153 residents) exceeds the population of Ward 2 (2,777 residents) by 11.93%
. Ward 3 (3, 397 residents') exceeds the population of Ward 1 (3, 153 residents) by 7^74%
. Ward 3 (3,397 residents') exceeds the population of Ward 2 (2,777 residents) by 22.33%



The population of the new ward boundaries would be as follows:
. Ward 2 (3, 136 residents) would exceed the population of Ward 1 (3, 114 residents) by

0.71%)
. Ward 1 (3, 114 residents) would exceed the population of Ward 3 (3, 077 residents) by

1. 19%
. Ward 2 (3, 136 residents) would exceed the population of Ward 3 (3, 077 residents) by

1. 88%

PREPARED BY: Trent deBraga, Deputy City Attorney



Resolution No. 21-09

A Resolution Changing the Three Ward Boundaries Embracing the Territory Within the
Corporate Limits of the City of Fallen

WHEREAS, Nevada Revised Statute 266.095 authorizes an incorporated city to be divided into
wards by ordinance;

WHEREAS, Nevada Revised Statute 266.095(1) (b) authorizes a city of population category two
to be divided into three wards;

WHEREAS, Nevada Revised Statute 266.055 defines cities of population category two as having
5,000 or more but less than 50,000 inhabitants;

WHEREAS, Fallen Municipal Code 2. 20. 060 divides the City ofFallon into three [3) wards
embracing the territory within the corporate limits of the City;

WHEREAS, Nevada Revised Statute 266.095 and Fallon Municipal Code 2.20.070 require the
boundaries of the wards to be changed whenever the population, as determined by the last
preceding national decennial census conducted by the Bureau of the Census of the United States
Department of Commerce, in any ward exceeds the population in any other ward by more than
five percent [5%);

WHEREAS, Nevada Revised Statute 266.095 and Fallen Municipal Code 2.20.070 authorizes the
City Council to change the boundaries of wards by any measure found reliable by the City
Council whenever the population in any ward exceeds the population in any other ward by more
than five percent (5%);

WHEREAS, Fallen Municipal Code 2. 20. 070 governs the changing of ward boundaries;

WHEREAS, Fallon Municipal Code 2. 20. 070 provides that the change in ward boundaries shall be
made by resolution of the City Council;

WHEREAS, the City ofFallon's ward boundaries were last changed in 2008 and there has since
been a change in the population of wards that exceeds the population of other wards by more
than five percent (5%);

WHEREAS, the City ofFallon has calculated the population figures in each ward by using an
online redistricting application, Dave's Redistricting, and have determined the current
population of Ward 1 exceeds the population of Ward 2 by more than five percent (5%) and that
the population of Ward 3 exceeds the population of Ward 1 and Ward 2 by more than five
percent [5%); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the measure used by the City of Fallen to change
the boundaries of the wards is reliable.



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council on this day does change the
boundaries of the three [3) wards embracing the territory within the corporate limits of the City
of Fallen pursuant to Fallen Municipal Code 2. 20.070.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council on this day does change and
establish the boundaries of the three (3) wards embracing the territory within the corporate
limits of the City of Fallen as depicted and delineated on the map attached hereto as Exhibit A.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Fallen, Nevada this _ day of
_, 2021.

Those voting aye:
Those voting nay:
Those absent:

Those abstaining:

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk/Treasurer



'^
.
i^l

1^

5 ^!"A.I

minnnW-' - i

, ^

,
-\

J '^"i'^
i>ntri*- v-^:r^-TT;. : 3S--. -^i iinm.S'S

t 'ti '. ^~'"'"s. '-"{ ^"t'"u5f

y^,. \ < :.

'1s. '.

l^. f. ^V;*-^ ii, ^i^auujuuj

IS.<'/"RlL
!~""^ *;l; i ^ !ii^>"

iar^'^y'

^
i31taLr

. <»<*"."^3* . M^3W"».:^

s§a
\^""7::][-. :::^y

iWI

H3i3r^ S3@B0PW-
. "f *-'Tl-Sr'-T

:LJ

'^..^. '^.T^Eai";
E^^.-yXteaiL

^

lf-1

fcjt_!!,3".LJI
pj=|^
tUiS-u. i.3 Lu*_. ria.«l

"^

'A?'"1)?*ri^'i\
'y^

v
\ ff ....-

: ; - : .^^1
111H

.

-' /.

'A.

^..,. !- 'i<
I i

>&.£,...-
~\r

/-J"

V WWR



December 20, 2021

Agenda Item 9

Fallen Police Department Monthly Report for
November 2021. (For discussion only



CITY OF FALLON
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

AGENDA ITEM NO.

DATE SUBMITTED: 12/10/21 AGENDA DATE REQUESTED: 12/20/21

TO: Mayor and Council

FROM: Kristopher R. Alexander, Chief of Police

SUBJECT: Fallon Police Department Monthly Report for November 2021

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: (Check One)
( ) Resolution ( ) Ordinance

( ) Formal Action/Motion ( x) Other (Specify) Review Only

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: For review only

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: (Attachment, if necessary)

FISCAL IMPACT: None

FUNDING SOURCE:

EXPLANATION OF IMPACT:

ALTERNATIVES:

Prepared By: Emily Rasmussen

Reviewed By: Chief Kristopher Alexandei
>-y

Date /ot/ ~) /o?

Date A2 11>1 1^1

Presented by Kristopher Alexander



MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT

^

November 2021



^̂ "
^

M
U

^
.

U
1

0
)
-
~

J
O

O
(
D

Q
O

Q
Q

Q
O

O
O

O
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

^
^

.^
^

^
'Q̂

'^

%
"°

A

^ $ ^̂ ^ \"
^0

. '<?

y
w

:
' s

e

t lt Is g
'5

0
^

i^ W
 

K)

J
^
^

en
 ^

ii

<̂
^ ^ ^ ^

IS
>

G
?

J
S

>
.

a
iO

l~
-
J
O

O
C

D
Q

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

'^
^

.% V̂
^ $̂̂ '7

^
>̂

^
^ %

>

^
^
w

f
w

y
'^

i^
y
M

s

.

%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%

?1
Q

'^
W

/W
/-

'^
^
/"

 '~
~1

1'
^

M
1^?

li (D
 o

0
§

K
g

W
 

N
)

co
 S

0
1

t

00
1

-^
^%

%
^^

$
%

%
%

1
 §

°? s:

0 Q
i

w w (D s I 3 0 ^
T

B

Q
.

<D
^ ST r i I Q
.



Crime Summary

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

;i
';,

I
/K. f̂t

July 2020-June 2021

1--

^

t
'/

j-
'/
..

^
I

^

- 4-

-*.' .-

i ^;:
July2020 AU6; 2020 .Sept. 2020'Oct. 2020-Nov. 2020 [Dec. 2020 Jan. 2021 Feb. 2021 Mar. 2021. Aprl 2021, May. 2021 June 2021 i

Sex Offense

Domestic Battery

Battery Assaults

. Stolen Vehicle

.; Larceny

Burglary

Robbery

Homicide

3

9

0

3

18

1

7

1

1

15

0

0

3

0

0

10

1

1

6

0

0

19

0

3

0

1

12

0

4

0

0

12

2

6

0

0

11

0

8

0

1

10

1

0

0

0

2

3

0

11

0

0

0

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

Sex Offense

' Domestic Battery
Battery Assaults

-Stolen Vehicle

.: Larceny

Burglary

Robbery

_' Homicide

July 2021-June 2022

i .1
-f'i.

July2021. Aug. 2021
Sept.

0

2

2

2

14

1

0

0

0

5

1

1

16

0

0

0

.>-- -
^

i-
i J

^ Oct. 2021 Nov. 2021| Dec. 20211Jan. 2022 Feb. 2022 Mar. 2022;Aprl 2022; May.2022 June 2022i
100; i

3 3 ' 1 , I l
0 1 0 .

Oil 0 ,

9 ' 19 13 ;

0 1 0 i

000 I
0 I 0 0 ;

-2-



Arrest Summary

35
July 2020-June 2021

30

25

20

15

10

I
.^ ^ t i

July2020iAug. 2020Sept. 2020. 0ct. 2020. Nov. 2020 Dec. 2020 Jan. 2021 Feb. 2021' Mar. 2021 Apr! 2021 May. 2021 June 2021
Felony/GM 5 ! 4 5 2 i 6

Misd. 12 23 19 12 14

DUI's 24201

/Juvenile Misd. 11 l 1 2 '' 0 i 0
.'... Juvenile Felony/GM i 20001

;: CPD's i 3 1 2 0 0

Domestic Violence 63 3 211

5

13

4

4

0

1

3

4

20

4

4

0

0

3

0

22

2

1

2

0

5

3

14

1

1

1

2

3

0

19

7

3

0

0

1

35
July 2021-June 2022

30

25

20

15

10

-y
-^

'/
/

July2021 Aug. 2021; ^ , Oct. 2021 .Nov. 2021 Dec. 2021 Jan. 2022 Feb. 2022'Mar. 2022 Aprl 2022. May.2022 |june 2022
Felony/GM 1 1 . 1 35

Misd. 32 20 14 21 6

DUI'S 54186

...-Juvenile Misd. 31695

.. Juvenile Felony/GM 00000

I CPC's 3101

Domestic Violence 1 2 3 2 0

-3-



Moving Citations Traffivc Warnings

300

250

200

150

100

50

July 2020-June 2021
Citations 186 Warnings 1. 643

187

13|

93

J

253

114

1 15|

203

I
90

118

22 3 i
166

i°n
JZ1i

142

"I

113

"I

142

17|

July Aug Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

Jan. Feb. Mar.

2021 2021 2021
Apr. May
2021 2021

E3 Citations E3 Warnings

June

2021

300

July 2021-June 2022
Citations 127 Warnings 526

250

200

150

100

50

145
-t28-

138

4 3 ia
1^

i
July Aug Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May June
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022

E3Citations BWarnings

-4-



Traffic Accidents

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

14

2020/2021 Total Accidents: 133

14
-h3-

K" 12 12

CL

v^- Tt-

CL 0.

10

a.
July
2020

Aug
2020

Sept.
2020

Oct.
2020

Nov.
2020

Dec.
2020

Jan.
2021

Feb.
2021

Mar.
2021

Apr.
2021

May
2021

June
2021

a Public Property D Private Property

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4 ;-

2 -I
!

-43-

20 2021/2022 Total Accidents: 79

10

July Aug Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb.
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2022 2022

Mar.
2022

Apr. May
2022 2022

June
2022

a Public Property D Private Property

-5-



Animal Shelter Service

100

90

80

Year to Date County Animals 500
July 2020-June 2021

Year to Date City Animals 504 Year to Date Tribal Animals 21

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

; 43

^

K

32

39
55-
Fi
1«<
1*1
Vi4
I* 1
hs<
ht-<
frll
1»4

32
PR-

 

><

 <
!. 
i«<l
1*<

^<
..<
-. <

~w

29^

59

-4ZL

32

43- ^43-

28

1R37

29

~53

40

62 60

10

July 2020 Aug 2020 Sept. Oct. 2020 Nov. 2020 Dec. 2020 Jan. 2021 Feb. 2021 Mar. 2021 Apr. 2021 May 2021 June 2021
2020

0 County a City a Tribal

100
Year to Date County Animals 228

July 2020-June 2021
Year to Date City Animals 280 Year to Date Tribla Animals 5

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

79

59

PR
Ill
I* <
1*<
1*4

El

49

63

31

1 0

July 2021 Aug 2021 Sept. Oct. 2021Nov. 2021Dec. 2021Jan. 2022Feb. 2022Mar. 2022Apr. 2022 May June 2022
2021 , , . 20212

OCounty DCity =Tribal

-6-



Fallon Police Department

Citizen Survey Results

November 2021

When you contacted the Police Department, how satisfied were you with the ability of the
dispatcher or employee that assisted you?

VERY SATISFIED SATISFIED DISSATISFIED NO OPINION

Where you satisfied with the courtesy and concern shown by the dispatcher or employee?

VERY SATISFIED
SATISFIED DISSATISFIED NO OPINION

Are you satisfied with the Police Department's response time?

VERY SATISFIED SATISFIED DISSATISFIED NO OPINION

Regarding your most recent contact, please rate the Officer in the following areas:

Officer name (s) Officerfs) J. Shvne. Bloomfield. Jacobs. Groom. Bernard and Serseantfs)
Schumann and Decker

Dispatcher (s)

VERY I
SATISFIED i SATISFIED DISSATISFIED NO OPINION

Concern 8 1

Courtesy
Knowledge
F'roblem Solving Ability
Professional Conduct

Overall, how satisfied are you with the Fallon Police Department?

VERY SATISFIED
7

SATISFIED
1

DISSATISFIED NO OPINION
1



Fallen Police Department

November 2021

Citizen Survey Comments

. Due to bad things going on I have had contact with Fallon P.D. The officers are always
very kind. I have always been impressed with Fallen P.D.

. I was wondering if anything was found out. I lost the business card, was wondering what's
going to happen now.
Cash was taken from her purse, the officer looked at video and nothing was shown to be
taken from her purse during that time.

. Thank you for protecting our community. I for one greatly appreciate it. The incident I
experienced was very upsetting, however, when Officer Groom showed up and calmly took
charge of the situation, it helped me feel safe again and I was extremely grateful.

. I would like to give a shout out to Officer Shyne for his assistance with my request. He
was professional, polite as well as cordial. Being new to the Fallon community, I
appreciated his assistance. My initial impression of the police department is
overwhelmingly positive.

. Thank you for your professional attention, politeness, and ability to put my concern at ease.
It was a relief to have the "next step" laid out. I appreciate the patience and thoroughness
that was shown to my case.

. A lot of speeding and bad driving would like to see more officers out and about.
Extra Patrol ordered for the area of N. Taylor & A. St



Fallen Police Department
Activities / Special Events

November 2021

ASSISTANCE

During the month of November, we provided lodging assistance to two people.

INDOCTRINATION

During the month of November there was no indoctrination as NAS Fallen.

VOLUNTEERS IN POLICE SERVICES

November 2021 the Fallen Police VIPS volunteered ninety-two and one half (92. 5) hours to the
agency. These duties included admin, patrolling and domestic violence meetings.

OTHER PUBLIC RELATIONS

During November officers conducted special detail for the following:
. On November 12th, Officer Ugalde provided the Varsity Football team with an escort

out of town to the State Semi Finals.

. On November 12th, Sergeant Decker ran in the Turkey Trot and Numa Elementary
School

. On November 19th, Sergeant Perez and Officer Woolfe provided traffic control for the
fountain dying for FYFL football champions.



December 20, 2021

Agenda Item 11

Consideration and possible action to approve
negotiated agreement between the City of Fallen
and the Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 to
be effective from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2024.
(Pursuant to NRS 288. 153, the proposed agreement
and any exhibits or other attachments to the
proposed agreement are available to the public on
the City's website^ fallonnevada. gov, and at the
City Clerk's Office, 55 West Williams Avenue,
Fallen, Nevada. ) (For Possible Action)



CITY OF FALLON
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Agenda Item No.

DATE SUBMITTED: December 13, 2021

AGENDA DATE REQUESTED: December 20, 2021

TO: The Honorable City Council

FROM: Sean Richardson, City Clerk/Treasurer

SUBJECT TITLE: Consideration and possible action to approve negotiated agreement between
the City of Fallen and the Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 to be effective from July 1,
2021 to June 30, 2024. (Pursuant to NRS 288. 153, the proposed agreement and any exhibits or
other attachments to the proposed agreement are available to the public on the City's website,
fallonnevada. gov, and at the City Clerk's Office, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallen, Nevada.)
(For possible action)

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: (Check One)

( ) Resolution
(X) Formal Action/Motion

( ) Ordinance
( ) Other - Review & Discussion

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to approve negotiated agreement between the
City of Fallen and the Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 to be effective from July 1, 2021
to June 30, 2024.

DISCUSSION: The proposed agreement is attached in both clean and redline versions.

FISCAL IMPACT: Adoption of the proposed negotiated agreement will result in an increase of
salaries as provided in the agreement.

FUNDING SOURCE: Various

PREPARED BY: Sean Richardson, City Clerk/Treasurer



Agreement Between

City of Fallen

AND THE 0Ktl^

OPERATING ENGINEERS

LOCAL UNION NO. 3

July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2024



AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into this 1st day of July 2Q21, by and between City of Fallen,
a Municipal Corporation of the State of Nevada, hereinafter referred t<^^"City", and the
Operating Engineer's Local Union NO. 3 of the International Union ̂ f^^ating
Engineer's, AFL/CIO hereinafter referred to as the "Union."

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS the City provides public services essential to the health, safety and welfare
of the residents of City of Fallen, and

WHEREAS it is the duty of the City to negotiate in good faith with the Union and it is the
duty of the Union to negotiate in good faith with the City concerning wages, hours, and
other terms and conditions of employment, and

WHEREAS the parties have reached certain understandings which they desire to
confirm in this agreement,

IT IS HEREBY AGREED as follows:

ARTICLE I
RECOGNITION

1.1 RECOGNITION

The City hereby recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive representative for
purposes of collective bargaining of the employees in the job classifications listed in
Schedule "A" attached hereto. The City agrees not to recognize or bargain with any
other organization purporting to represent the members of the bargaining unit for as
long as the Union remains the exclusive bargaining representatives of the employees.
The City agrees not to enter into any written or verbal agreement with any employee
that is covered under the collective bargaining agreement.

1.2 EMPLOYEE DEFINITION

As used herein unless the context otherwise requires, the words and terms listed
below shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section.

a. "Regular employee" means an employee who has been retained in a regular
position with the City after completion of the probationary period.



b. "Regular part-time employee" means an employee whose regular work week
consists of 20 hours maximum per week.

c. "Probationary employee" means an employee who is on probation in a regular
position. Newly hired probationary employees are excluded fron^e
coverage of the agreement except as otherwise provided hei;

d. Date of Hire. The date of hire shall be defined as the ̂ PB^employee
completes the 6-month probationary period and becomBS'a regular employee
as set forth in paragraph a. Date of hire will revert back to original starting
date, after completing 6-month probation period..

e. Temporary employees. The Union recognizes the need and periodic use of
temporary employees, however, they shall not be utilized beyond a ninety
(90) day period. In the event a temporary employee is utilized beyond the
ninetieth (90th) day, they will be considered as a "Probationary employee" as
defined in 1.2 (c) above.

1.3 ELIGIBILITV FOR BENEFITS

The rights and benefits provided herein shall be accorded to all regular
employees. Regular employees shall receive annual leave and sick leave
benefits. Employees working less than 40 hours but more than 20 hours (3/4)
time shall receive annual leave and sick leave benefits on a prorated basis. The
term of any probationary period shall be credited for the purposes of determining
annual leave, sick leave, promotional rights, and insurance eligibility. The City
shall not hire part-time or temporary employees as a means to avoid payment of
benefits. Any part-time employee who works less than 21 hours per week shall
not be entitled to pro-rated benefits.

ARTICLE 2
UNION RIGHTS

2.1 PERTINENT INFORMATION

The Union may request reasonable information concerning any subject matter included
in the scope of mandatory bargaining which it deems necessary for/or relevant to
collective bargaining, or necessary for the administration or application of this
agreement. Whenever possible, the request will be made in writing. The City shall,
within a reasonable period, furnish any information as may be reasonably requested.



Furthermore, the City shall notify the Union of the name, classification and starting
grade and step of each new employee within 30 days of the new employee's starting
date. In the event the City establishes a new classification, the Union will be notified in
writing of the newly established classification title and wage rate. If, within 30 days
thereafter, the Union provides written notification of its disagreement with the
classification or its wage rate, the City and Union shall meet to discuss the issue prior to
submission to the grievance process. The Union shall have the right tc^ost notices of
activities and matters of Union concern on bulletin boards, at least .srl^olWiich shall be
provided in each department. The Union shall have the right toj^^liSr-office mail for
Union business.

2.2 UNION BUSINESS

Representatives of the Union will be permitted to transact Union business on City
property, providing there is no disruption to the normal work and direct organizing
activities are no conducted. Designated representatives of the Union shall be allowed
to receive telephone calls or other communiques concerning Union business at any time
during working hours, provided that such activities shall not disrupt work.

Furthermore, the City's buildings may be available for meetings upon request and
reasonable notice. The City shall provide reasonable prior notice to the Union before it
implements changes in personnel practices or general working conditions that will affect
an entire department or division.

2.3 RELEASE TIME FOR UNION BUSINESS

On July 1st of each year, the Union shall be credited with 60 hours of administrative
leave to be used for Union business by employees during working hours without loss of
pay. The department head's approval must be obtained before administrative leave
may be used, but such approval may not be unreasonable withheld. It is understood
the work needs of the City shall be recognized when granting leave. Administrative
leave is separate and distinct from release time for negotiations. When the City and the
Union agree to conduct negotiations during normal work hours, the City shall allow
release time, with pay, to those employees who are members of the Union's negotiation
committees. Grievance hearings shall be conducted during normal work hours with
release time, with pay, for those employees who are members of the Union's grievance
committee. The Union shall notify the City in writing of a maximum of five employees
who with serve on their negotiation committee, five of whom may attend negotiation
sessions as discussed above.



ARTICLE 3
UNION DUES CHECK-OFF

3. 1 The employees may authorize payroll deductions for the purpose of paying Union
dues. Upon the execution of the proper personnel payroll document filed with the
Payroll Division and coinciding with the commencement of a payroll period, the City
agrees to deduct from the wages of an employee, on a biweekly or monthly basis, such
sum as the employee may specify. Payroll will not deduct assessments or fines. Each
employee shall have the right to terminate such payroll deductions for dues during the
fifteen (15) day period immediately preceding their anniversary date of entry into the
Union and the ten (1 0) day period immediately after their anniversary date of entry into
the Union. The employee's earnings must be regularly sufficient after other legal and
required deductions are made to cover the amount of the appropriate Unionjdues.
When a member is in good standing of the Union is in non-pay status for^S^CItire PaY
period, no withholding will be made to cover the pay period from futurei^gyngs. In the
case of an employee who is in non-pay status during only part of thO^Vperiod, and
the wages are not sufficient to cover the full withholding, no dedu^fflpS 'shali be made.

In this connection, all other legal and required deductions have priWly over Union dues.

3.2 Deductions shall be made from the second payroll period of each month. One
check for the total deductions for membership dues and initiation fees shall be
submitted to the Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3, 1620 S. Loop Road, Alameda,
CA 94502 within five working days of the date the dues are withheld from the
employee's check. A breakdown of said check shall accompany the transmittal to the
Union of any changes since the previous dues and the reasons thereof. The form used
for check-off authorization shall be approved by both the City and the Union.

3.3 INDEMNIFICATION

The Union will indemnify, defend and hold the City harmless against any claims made
and against any suits instituted against the City on account of any action taken or not
taken by the City in good faith under the provisions of this article. The Union agrees to
refund the City any amounts paid to it in error on account of the payroll deduction
provisions after the presentation of proper evidence thereof.



ARTICLE 4
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

4.1 CITf'S RIGHT TO MANAGE

Except as otherwise provided herein and/or as provided by MRS 288, or in any
supplement hereto, the City retains all rights resen/ed to local government employees
under the laws of Nevada. The retention of these rights does not preclude any
employees from filing a grievance or seeking a review of the exercise of these rights.
Furthermore, the City shall have the ultimate right and responsibility of a local
government employer to manage its operation in the most efficient manner consistent
with the best interests of all its citizens, its taxpayers and its employees consistent with
the agreement. The City has the right and is entitled without negotiation to (a) direct
and manage its employees; (b) hire, promote, transfer, assign, retain, suspend, demote,
discharge, or take disciplinary action against any employee with just cause and
pursuant to the City ordinances and Nevada Revised Statutes, provided, however, that
the City shall not transfer an employee as a form of discipline; (c) relieve any employee
from duty because of lack of work or lack of funds; (d) determine the methods, means
and personnel by which its operations are to be conducted, except for considerations of
personal safety; (e) take whatever actions may be necessary to carry out its
responsibilities in situations of emergency; and (f) determine appropriate staffing levels
and work performance standards, except for safety consideration^^ determine the
content of the workday, including without limitation workload facte3^wFtile recognizing
safety considerations. Delivery of Municipal services in the i]a^p((pT icient and courteous

manner is paramount importance to the City and the Unioi^Wh achievement is
recognized to be a mutual obligation of both parties within Wr respective roles and
responsibilities.

ARTICLE 5
NON-DISCRIMINATION

Both parties to the Agreement agree to assure equal employment opportunity to all
employees and not to engage in any employment practice which discriminates against
any employee for employment with respect to compensation, terms, conditions or
privileges of employment because of any individual's race, color, religion, national
origin, marital status, eligibility for military service, sex, age, or Union affiliation as
provided by law, or mental or physical handicap, to the full extent required by law.



such legal
or juror fee

ARTICLE 6
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

6. 1 CIVIC. JUDICIAL. AND QUASI-JUDICIAL DUTY-

An employee called to appear for legal proceedings before any judicial orquasi-judicial
or administrative tribunal, as a result of a Job related incident, or in the course of
performance or an employment obligation, or for jury duty, shall be granted
administrative leave and shall not lose compensation for responding tooi^iK|cipating
in such proceedings. Such leave shall include appearance as a witr;
proceedings referred to above, or as a juror for jury duty, and ar
shall be paid over to the City.

6.2 PERSONAL LIFE

The personal life of any employee is not an appropriate concern of the City unless it in
fact adversely affects the employee's job performance or productivity, or interferes with
the job performance of any other City employee.

6. 3 APPEARANCES BEFORE EMPLOYER

Any employee shall be entitled but is not required to have a representative of the Union
present during any appearance before the City or its representatives concerning any
matter, which could adversely affect the employee's position, employment, salary, or
any increase thereto. The City and the Union shall both advise the employees of their
rights to have a representative present at any time when such employee's employment
may be affected. In the event the City calls a meeting for the purpose of considering an
adverse change in an employee's employment, the City shall advise the employee of
his right to have a representative present.

6.4 JUST CAUSE

No employee shall be disciplined, suspended, reduced in rank or compensation,
adversely evaluated, transferred for disciplinary reasons, dismissed, terminated or
otherwise deprived of any employment advantage without Just cause. The City agrees
to follow a general practice of progressive discipline as applicable.

6.5 STATE AND FEDERAL RIGHTS

Nothing contained herein shall be constructed to deny employees such rights as they
have under the laws of Nevada, the United States, or other applicable laws, decisions
and regulations. The rights granted to employees hereunder shall be deemed to be in
addition to those provided elsewhere.



ARTICLE 7
EMPLOYEE WORK SHIFT AND WORKWEEK

7. 1 STANDARD WORK SHIFT

a. Regular full-time employees' regularly scheduled work shift shall be j
hours except as provided by paragraphs (c) and (d) below.

b. Regular part-time employees' regularly scheduled work shH
than four hours, except as provided by paragraphs (c) an<

c. There may be a regularly scheduled alternative work shift.

d. In the event the City decides to change a regularly scheduled work shift, the
city shall provide fifteen (15) days advance notice to, and discussion with, the
Union and affected employees prior to implementation of any change. Such
changes shall only be made for the efficiency of the operations.

7.2 STANDARD WORKWORK

a. Regular full time employees regularly scheduled work week shall be forty (40)
hours.

b. Regular part time employees regularly scheduled work week shall not be less
than twenty-one (21) hours.

c. This section does not establish nor should it be understood to be a
guaranteed work week for employees covered by this Agreement but defines
the basic workweek for the purposes of a subject of mandatory negotiation
and overtime. The standard workweek shall begin at 12:01 AM on Monday
and shall end at midnight Sunday

7.3 REST PERIOD

Employees shall receive a fifteen (15) minute rest period for each four hours
worked.



ARTICLE 8
OVERTIME

8. 1 COMPUTING OVERTIME

a. "Working hours" means that I'm an employee is required to be on duty. or at a
prescribed workplace and time during which he is permitted to work.

b. Annual leave, sick leave, approved holidays and compensatory time off shall be
considered hours worked for the purpose of computing overtime.

c. Employees who work in excess of (8) eight hours per day shall be paid time and
one half (1.5) their regular hourly rate for the excess hours, e)
employee who works a regularly scheduled 10 hour day she
one half (1.5) their regularly hourly rate for hours worked if
per day, except as provided herein.

d. Employees who work in excess of 40 hours per week Shall be paid time and one
half (1. 5) their regular houriy rate for the excess hours, except as provided
herein.

!pt that an
iaid time and

ssof 10 hours

8.2 COMPENSATORY TIME OFF

a. In the event an employee works overtime on a particular work shift, the employee
may elect to take compensatory time off at the rate of time and one half (1 .5) in
lieu of overtime cash payment.

b. Compensatory time may accumulate to a maximum of twenty-four (24) hours.

8.3 EMPLOYEES WORKING ON SEVEN-DAY_QPERATJON^

a. Employees working necessary continuous seventy operations, whose occupation
involve work on Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays, shall be paid overtime
compensation for work on those days only for time worked in excess of eight (8)
hours (or 10 hours for scheduled 10 hour employees) per day or forty 40 hours
per week, except as provided herein.

b. Time and one half (1, 5) shall be paid for hours worked on the employee's first or
second regularly scheduled day off in the workweek, except as provided herein,



8.4 ASSIGNMENT FOR OVERTIME WORK

Overtime work shall be applied on a rotational and equitable basis. Overtime will
not be offered to temporary employees until all bargaining unit employees have rejected
the overtime.

ARTICLE 9
PROBATION PERIOD

All new employees shall serve a probationary period of six (6) months. Newly
hired probationary employees are excluded from the coverage of this Agreement except
as otherwise provided herein. During such probationary period, such employees may be
laid off or discharged for any reason. And in addition, employees tr^p^rred or
promoted shall serve a sixty (60) day probationary period. Upon t^j>fer or promotion
the employee maintains the right to voluntarily return to hisjj^Byjii without penalty
during the probationary period.

ARTICLE 10
GRIEVANCE

10.1 DEFINITIONS

a. A grievance is a claim relating to the interpretation or application of this
Agreement and those portions of the City of Fallon Municipal Code which are
applicable and that are subjects of mandatory bargaining. This does not
preclude informal discussion and attempt to resolve the problem prior to filing a
formal grievance, even though such discussions are not part of the formal
grievance procedure.

b. A grievant is a regular employee, or a group of regular employees, or the Union
filing the grievance.

c. Days shall mean working days, Monday through Friday, and shall not include
Saturday, Sunday or holidays.

10.2 RIGHTS TO REPRESENTATION

At least one union representative may be present for any meeting, hearing,
appeal, or other proceeding between the City and a grievant relating to a grievance,
which has been presented under this Article. If, in the judgment of the Union, a
grievance affects a group of employees of the Union, the Union may initiate and submit
such grievance, in writing, to the Mayor or designated representative directly, and the
processing of such grievance shall commence at Step II, described below. When it is
necessary for the grievant or the Grievance Committee to attend a hearing held in



connection therewith, he or she will be released from normal duties, without loss of pay,
in order to do so.

10.3 PROCEDURE

All grievances shall be submitted in writing.

All grievances in the first instance may be submitted to the union in order to provide
representation and protection for the employee.

Failure to respond at any supervisory level within 10 days will result in the award being
granted to the grievant.

STEP I

Within 21 days of the occurrence, knowledge or condition, which i^the basis of
the complaint, the grievant may present the grievance, in writing, to tha6u1^rvjsor. The
supervisor shall attempt to adjust the matter and respond in writir]fl, t%l^grievant within
10 days. The answer shall include the reasons upon which th^ifiiyftn was based.

STEP II

If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Step I, the
grievant may, within 10 days, submit the grievance in writing to the Mayor or the
Mayor's designated representative. The Mayor or his designated representative shall
schedule a hearing within 10 working days. At such hearing, the City must present all its
arguments and evidence, if any, which it contends to support the City's position, and the
grievant or Union may present its arguments and evidence which it contends to support
the grievant position. The Mayor or his designated representative shall render his
decision in writing within 10 days of the end of the hearing.

STEP III

If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Step II, the
grievance may be submitted in writing to arbitration for resolution. The grievant or the
Union shall exercise the right of arbitration by giving the Mayor written notice of its
intention to arbitrate within 10 days after it has received the Mayor's decision at Step II
If any question arises as to arbitrability, search question will first be ruled upon by the
arbitrator selected to hear the dispute. Within 10 days after such written notice of
submission to arbitration, the City and the Union will attempt to agree upon a mutually
acceptable arbitrator, and to obtain a commitment from such arbitrator to serve. If the
parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator, or to obtain such a commitment within
the 10-day period, a request for a list of arbitrators may be made by either party to the



Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The party shall attempt to utilize arbitrators
residing in Nevada. Within five days of receipt of the list, each party shall stride names
from the list, and the name remaining shall be the arbitrator

10.4 ARBITRATION COSTS

Each party shall bear its own costs of arbitration, except that the fees and
charges of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the parties. If one Qfethe parties
wants a transcript of the arbitration proceedings, the party requestingfijiig^ranscript will
pay the cost of the transcript, and the other side shall not be entjt!^9te copy of said
transcript unless the costs are shared. If both parties requesVifig^-ipts, they shall
share equally the costs.

10.5 JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR

The arbitrator shall decide alt substantive and procedural issues. Upon request of
either party, and in the discretion of the arbitrator, the merits of a grievance and the
substantive and procedural issues arising in connection with the grievance shall be
consolidated for hearing before an arbitrator. The decision of the arbitrator cannot
modify, amend or change any portion of this standing agreement the arbitrator shall
consider the grievance and render a decision, which shall be final and binding upon the
parties without recourse except as provided by law

10. 6 EXCEPTION TO TIME LIMITS

The time limits provided in this article shall be strictly observed, unless extended
by mutual consent of the parties or otherwise excused for just cause as determined by
the arbitrator. Grievances involving alleged errors in salary are deemed continuing
grievances, with each salary payment constituting a separate occurrence, which may
form the basis of a complaint. Notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement, any
claim or grievance which arises during the term of the Agreement may be processed
through this grievance procedure until resolution.

10.7 COOPERATION OF THE EMPLOYER AND UNION

The City and the Union will cooperate with each other in the investigation of any
grievance, and further, will furnish each other with such necessary and relevant
information as is requested for the processing of any grievance. No grievance board
member or member of the Grievance Committee involved in a hearing of any grievance
shall suffer loss of salary or benefits. Overtime or any other special pay shall likewise
not apply.



10.8 PERSONNEL FILES

All documents, communications, and records dealing with the processing of a
grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of the participants. The
parties agree such documents are confidential and are not to be relegped to anyone
without the employee's consent or an appropriate court order. Like<|p9^the parties
agree that all personnel files contain confidential, personal infqrrityjjh and, as such,
shall not be released to anyone without the employee's cons^BL? appropriate court
order

10.9 RIGHT TO REPRESENTATION

The Union recognizes its responsibility as bargaining agent and agrees fairly to
represent all employees in the bargaining unit, notwithstanding such responsibility,
however, the Union and the City recognize the right of any employee who is not a
member of the Union to act for himself with respect to any condition of his employment,
with or without his private outside counsel, at his own expense, provided that any action
taken on a request or in adjustment of a grievance shall be consistent with the terms of
the grievance process in this Agreement, all as provided in NRS 288. 140(2 ); the non-
member also has the option of requesting the Union to provide representation for a
specific incident in the filing and/or process of his grievance on terms agreed upon by
the Union and the grievant. The City will be held harmless for any individual between
the Union grieving the employee.

ARTICLE 11
RETIREMENT

Ail employees covered by this Agreement shaif be covered by the state of
Nevada Public Employees Retirement System pursuant to NRS Chapter 286. The City
shall maintain the current rate as required by the system, which is 29. 75% as of the
date of the Agreement. Any upward adjustment equating to more than .5% per year of
the rate of significant modification or amendment to the content of the system, the
parties shall convene in the appropriate manner to review the issue.

ARTICLE 12
COMPENSATION

12. 1 SALARIES

Effective July 1, 2021 employees shall receive a salary increase of Three Percent (3%)

Effective July 1, 2022 employees shall receive a salary increase of Two and a Half
Percent (2. 5%)



Effective July 1, 2023 employees shall receive a salary increase of Two and a Half
Percent (2. 5%)

STANDBY PREMIUM PAY

Employees who are required to be on standby time shall be compensated as
follows:

a. Any employee designated to be on standby shal^iy^S sixteen (16) hours
straight time for each seven-day period desigi^BflPB be on standby. Any
employee who is designated for standby for lesSlffian seven (7) days shall be
compensated on a prorated basis of the sixteen (16) hours in accordance with
the number of days he/she is designated for standby. An employee designated
to be on seven (7) day standby shall remain at a place where he can be
contacted by telephone or pager in case of emergency and be accessible to
perform emergency services. A standby employee can only be called out by his
Supervisor, the Police Department, the Mayor or his designee. If the standby
employee does not respond to a call out within thirty (30) minutes he may be
subject to a loss in pay and/or discipline subject to the appeal process.

b. Employees shall be paid at the rate of one and one half (1. 5) times their regular
hourly rate for each hour, or fraction thereof, of actual work when actually
contacted to perform service. In the event of a call out to perform a minimum of
two hours will be allowed for each incident called from the employees residence.

c. This provision shall be uniform for all departments.

12.2 CALL BACK PAY

An employee who is called back to work before or after his regular work schedule
shall receive a minimum of two hours pay at the rate of one and one half (1. 5) times the
current contract salary. Employees who are required to report to work on their non-work
days, or on holidays they are entitled to have off, or outside their regular hours on work
days, shall be paid overtime compensation from the time the employee is caiied until
they report back to their normal workplace, but in any event not less than two (2)hours
compensation.

12.3 MEDICAL TREATMENT FOR ON-THE-JOB INJURIES

An employee who has returned to regular duty after sustaining a compensable
illness or injury and who is required in writing by the workers compensation doctor to
receive additional medical treatment during the employee's standard working hours



shall receive the employee's standard hourly rate of pay for such time up to 10 hours
daily.

ARTICLE 13
STEP ADVANCEMENTS

At the completion of an employee's probationary period
advanced to the next step of the salary schedule for his classic
the City, an employee may be advanced to the next step of the'
classification to completion of the employee probationary period.

loyee shall be
At the option of

lary schedule for his

a. Fifty-two weeks of full -time service after the initial probationary step increase,
regardless of when granted, an employee shall advance to the next higher
step. Each fifty-two weeks of full-time service thereafter, the employee shall
again advance to the next higher step until the top step in the classification
has been reached.

b. Pay increases shall be effective on the first day of the succeeding pay period
after
the advancement.

ARTICLE 14
RESPONSlBILlTf PAY

14. 1 RESPONSIBILITY PAY

The City may temporarily assign an employee to a supervisory position or an
upgraded classification. All temporary upgrades shall be assigned and approved by the
supervisor before work is performed. In the event the employee is temporarily assigned
to a higher classification, for not less than five hours in a work day, the employee shall
be compensated ten percent 10% upward adjustment onto the hourly rate for actual
time in temporary assignment. This does not include training opportunities nor shall
training be used to circumvent this provision.

14.2 PAY FOR REQUIRED BI-LINGUAL SPANISH SPEAKING EMPLOYEES

Specific circumstances require designated employees, by the City, to fluently
speak, read or write Spanish in the course of their workday the City shall select two
employees who are recognized fluent in Spanish to be designated bilingual for the
purpose of interpretation necessary to conduct city business. The employees shall be
compensated an additional $100.00 per month allowance for availability and
performance of this activity during normal work hours. Any requests to be available



and/or serve as an interpreter outside normal duty hours shall be compensated at 1.5 of
the regular rate. The designated employees will be mutually agreeabl@^ serve the
departments where interpretation is provided. If it is determined thgtlfer^than two
individuals are required, the City shall submit the name of an a^t!®feiTqualified
employee to the Union prior to implementation.

ARTICLE 15
HOLIDAYS

15.1 LEGAL HOLIDAYS

The following days shall be observed as legal holidays:

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King's Birthday
President's Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Nevada Day
Veterans Day
Thanksgiving Day
Family Day
Christmas Day

15. 2 OTHER HOLIDAYS DEFINED

Any other Segal holiday that may be designated by the president of the
United states, the governor of Nevada, or the City Council.

15.3 HOLIDAY FALLING WITHIN VACATION PERIOD

If a legal holiday falls within an employee's approved vacation., that day shall not
be charged to annual leave.

15.4 HOLIDAY OBSERVANCE

When a designated holiday falls on a Saturday, the Friday before will be
observed as a holiday, and when a designated holiday falls on a Sunday, the Monday
after will be observed as the holiday. For non-standard workweek employees who
usually works Saturday and/or Sunday, if the designated holiday falls on a Saturday or
Sunday, such day shall be granted as a holiday for purposes of Article 15. 6 (Pay for
Work on Holiday). The non-standard workweek employee shall not accrue additional



holiday time for the Friday or Monday that is observed as the holiday for standard work-
week employees.

15.5 COMPUTING HOLIDAY PAY ^
Holiday pay will be based upon the employee's regularJtfiS^wage for the

number of hours in his regular work day. Such computationjt^e'exclusive of shift
differential and overtime pay.

15.6 PAY FOR WORK ON HOLIDAY

An employee who is required to work on a holiday shall receive 1. 5 for actual
hours worked in addition to regular Holiday pay at straight time. In lieu of receiving
compensation as specified above and subject to the City's approval, the employee may
elect to receive the regular rate of pay for the hours worked on the holiday and accrue
compensatory time off at the rate of 1. 5 for each hour worked on the holiday

ARTICLE 16
ANNUAL LEAVE

16. 1 COMPUTATION OF VACATION DAYS

All regular full time employees shall accumulate annual leave for each calendar
month or major fraction thereof in accordance with the following schedule:

Less than one year:
After one year but less than two years:
After two years but !ess than five years:
After five years but less than 10 years:
After 10 years but less than 15 years:
After 15 years but less than 20 years:
After 20 years of continuous service:

9 days
10 days
12 days
17 days
21 days
24 days
27 days

On the employee's 15th, 20th and 25th anniversary one additional week (5 days)
of vacation will be allotted for use that year.

16. 2 LIMITATION

Vacation credit may not be accumulated to exceed 240 hours at the beginning of
any fiscal year. Vacation is granted for the purpose of encouraging an employee to take
time off from his job. No employee shall be permitted to waive vacation time for the
purpose of receiving pay for unused used hours. Each eligible employee shall bid for
usage of vacation credits in an account as desired by the employee in accordance with



Section 16. 5, or as otherwise allowed in order to comply with this section. In the event
an employee is unable to take vacation consistent with the intent of this Section, such
employee who has accrued annual leave in excess of the maximum allowed, shall be
compensated for the amount of leave in excess of the maximum at the end of the fiscal
year. However, any employee who has not complied with Section
otherwise attempted to use his annual leave credits to remain bel
allowable credits, shall forfeit the excess unless the request fc
been denied for the convenience of the City.

16. 3 ANNUAL LEAVE UPON TERMINATION
<y

»r who has not
.'maximum

annual leave has

Upon termination, the employees will receive a lump sum payment for all
accumulated, unused annual leave and compensatory time, up to the maximum, at
100% the current contract salary. No employee shall be paid for accumulated leave
upon termination of his service unless employed six months or more.

16.4 EMPLOYEES BECOMING ILL WHILE ON VACATION

An employee who submits satisfactory evidence that during his vacation period
he was hospitalized for a disability shall, at his request, be granted sick leave for the
period of his disability to the extent that he is entitled to such leave under the provisions
of Section 17 of this Agreement and the portion of his lost vacation time for which sick
leave is granted shall be credited to him.

16. 5 Vacations shall be posted for bid on March 1st of each year. Employees shall bid
vacation by departmental seniority during the month of March. Vacation shall be
awarded by seniority bid and posted no later than the 15th day ofApri! of each year.

16.6 In addition to weekly increments, vacation credits may be used when approved in
advance by the City in any amount up to an amount equal to the employee's regular
work shift.

16.7 Regular part-time employees shall accrue vacation credits on a pro-rated basis
by determining the hours actually worked as a percentage of forty, reference Article 1.

ARTICLE 17
SICK LEAVE AND OTHER LEAVES OF ABSENCE

17 1 PAID SICK LEAVE

a. Starting from the date of hire, full-time employees hired shall accrue one day of
sick leave each month, to a maximum of 12 days per year, at full salary, for



personal illness or disability, personal medical appointments, quarantine or
communicable disease, maternity, paternity, adoption, or illness, disability or
communicable disease in the immediate family.

b. Unused days of sick leave each year will be allowed to accumulate without limit
for use purposes.

c, Employees may not use accumulated sick leave until compjfitl
continuous employment.

d. Sick leave may be used for absences necessitated by pregnancy, miscarriage,
childbirth and recovery there from and shall include leave for purposes of
adoption as may be required by State and Federal law or regulations.

e. When absences due to the employees personal illness the employee does not
have to inform the City of the nature of such illness. The City may require a
physician's statement as to the authenticity of the reasons for use of sick leave if
such sick leave is for more than three consecutive days. Where the City has
reasonable cause to believe sick leave is being abused, it may require the
employee to submit a physician's statement and, in such event, the appropriate
City representative shall state, in writing, the reason for suspecting abuse of sick
leave.

f. Family sick leave shall be limited to 80 hours per fiscal year unless excess
amount is approved by the employee's department head or the department
head's designee. Prior to any family sick leave being approved, the employee
shall contact the employee's department head or the department head's
designee oraliy or in writing within one day of employee returning to work stating
the reason for using family sick leave. For purposes of this section "in writing"
shall include the use of a standard leave slip.

g If an employee is hospitalized during vacation period, upon request of his
supen/isor he shall be granted sick leave up to the amount he has accumulated
for the period of confinement

h. If a holiday which an employee is entitled to have off with pay occurs on a work
day during the time an employee is absent on sick leave, the employee shall
receive pay for the holiday as such, and it shall not be counted as a day of sick
leave.



17.2 COMPENSATION FOR UNUSED SICK LEAVE

Upon death or retirement after five years of satisfactory j^ype, employees or
beneficiaries shall receive compensation for unused sick lea^g^ithe employee's

;e with the following

35%
50%
75%

regular hourly rate of pay unadjusted for retirement, in ac
schedule:
At least 5 years, but less than 10 years
At least 10 years, but less than 20 years
More than 20 years

17. 3 USE OF SICK LEAVE WHILE ON WORKERS' COMPENSATION

a. An employee who is unable to work due to an on-the-job injury or illness and who
receives "Workers Compensation" pursuant to MRS 616A, 616B, 616C, 616D,
01-617 shall be allowed to supplement such compensation by utilization of
accrued sick leave at the rate of up to 13 hours per week, until the accrued sick
leave is exhausted.

b. When accrued sick leave has been exhausted, if the employee is still unable to
work, accrued compensatory time shall be allowed to supplement the Workers
Compensation at the rate of up to 13 1/2 hours per week until such accrued
compensatory time has been exhausted.

c. When accrued compensatory time has been exhausted, if the employee is still
unable to work, accrued annual leave shall be allowed to supplement the
Workers Compensation at a rate of 13 1/2 hours per week until such accrued
annual leave has been exhausted.

17.4 ACCOUNTING OF ACCRUED SICK LEAVE

Employees shall be given a written accounting of accumulated sick leave on
employee paychecks.

ARTICLE 18
OTHER LEAVE

18. 1 MATERNITY - PATERNIT/ - ADOPTION LEAVE

In addition to leave provided in Article 17, the City may provide leave of absence
without pay for any employee who is required to be absent from work because of
pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth and recovery there from, and paternity and adoption.



The length of the maternity leave of absence, including the date on which the leave
shall commence and the date on which the employee shall resume duties, shall be
determined by the employee in consultation with their physician. JIR^City's approval is
required but will not be unreasonably withheld. The parties ag(^88|iat this benefit will
not diminish employee rights under the Federal Family Me^spt^ave act of 1993.

18. 2 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

Employees who are required to be absent from work due to the death of a
member of the employee's immediate family shall receive compensation at their regular
rate of pay for time allotted sick leave if additional bereavement is necessary or for
critical illness of a family member or leave for a funeral involving other family members.
The City may require documentation necessary to travel, attendance and conducting
necessary business not to exceed five (5) days. Immediate family as used herein
includes the employee's spouse, significant other, children, stepchildren, brothers,
sisters, parents or grandparents and parents-in-law.

18.3 LEAVE FOR CMC DUTIES

Temporary leave at full salary will be provided to each employee for jury duty,
court appearances or administrative proceedings arising out of the employee's
employment. Employees subpoenaed or otherwise required to appear in court or
administrative proceedings arising out of their employment in which appearances occur
outside their regularly scheduled shift shall be paid 1 1/2 times the regular rate of pay
for the time spent at such appearances. Juror or witness fees received by the employee
shall be returned to the City.

18.4 MILITARY LEAVE

Employees shail be entitled to military leave, as now or hereafter authorized by
law, to participate in National Guard Reserve or other United States military training.
There shall be no loss of seniority, sick leave or annual leave rights during such leave.
An employee shall receive his regular pay, not to exceed fifteen (15) calendar days per
year while on such leave. Where required by the nature of an employee's military
obligation, leaves without pay in excess of fifteen (15) calendar days may be granted for
military sen/ice in time of war, national or state of emergency, as proclaimed by the
proper federal or state authorities, with reinstatement to be made at the expiration of
such required period of leave as now or hereafter authorized by law.



18.5 EMERGENCY SERVICE

In addition, employees called out on City-County reserve emergency service
shall not realize any loss of pay.

18.6 LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

a. Leave without pay may be granted for court appe,
proceedings not related to employment in whi<
witness.

'or administrative
ployee is a party or a

b. A leave of absence without pay may be granted to a regular employee for a
period not to exceed 30 working days in any calendar year upon the approval
of the department head.

c. A leave of absence without pay exceeding 30 working days, but not
exceeding one year may be granted upon the recommendation of the
department head and the approval of the Mayor.

d. A leave of absence under this section shall not be considered a break in
continuous service. After 30 days however, probationary periods and
anniversary dates shall be adjusted for the purpose of merit increases. Sick
an annuaf leave will not accrue during leave without pay status. Employees
may elect to continue coverage under the medical insurance by pre pain
required premiums.

e. Upon return from a leave of absence under this section the employee shall be
entitled to the same position heid immediately before commencement of such
leave or to a position of comparable responsibility and remuneration in the
same grade and step.

f. Leave without pay will not be granted for an employee to seek other
compensabie employment.

ARTICLE 19
EQUIPMENT. TOOL AND CLOTHING ALLOWANCE

19. 1 PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT

City will furnish such protective devices as goggles, safety shoes, boots and
gloves, and all other equipment necessary to protect employees from industrial injury
and health hazards. Initial and replacement issuances will be made at no cost to the
employee when such replacements are necessary because of wear. Employees will be



responsible and accountable for proper wear and maintenance of safety equipment
issued. The City will provide funding and reimbursement for protective, leather
industrial steel-toed boots for employees requiring the use of boots during their work
day. The boots should be of lace-up construction with a durable sole. The boots should
last approximately the minimum of one year. The City will reimburs^^to Two
Hundred Fifty Dollars ($250. 00) upon receipt of boots. The empl^s^is^esponsible for
daily care and wear of purchased boots. Employees will bej^ii^Tfo wear the boots
purchased during work hours.

19.2 UNIFORM AND CLOTHING

In addition to apparel required to be worn for purposes of health or safety, city
shall, at no cost to the employee, supply any uniforms they are required to wear and
make necessary and reasonable placement thereof. City shall bear the cost of repairing
such uniforms when damage in the performance of duty. Such uniforms will remain the
property of the City at all times. This section shall not apply to dispatchers, Police
Services Assistance and C. S.O., who shall continue to receive an allowance in lieu of
such uniforms being provided. Refer to 29. 1 for applicability.

19.3 TOOL ALLOWANCE

a. City will furnish all tools used by employees in their work.

b. All tools furnished by City shall remain its property, but will be charged to the
employees who shall be responsible for the security of the tools assigned to
them.

19.4 REPAIR OF REPLACEMENT OF PERSONAL PROPERTY

Upon approval of the Department Head, the employer shall reimburse an
employee for the costs of repairing or replacing watches or prescription eyeglasses,
which are lost, damaged or stolen while the employee is in the specific performance of
his or her duties within 30 days of notification to the department head as follows:

Prescription eyeglasses up to 50% of repair or replacement cost up to a
maximum of $300 with the City's maximum share $150. The first $100 of the repair or
replacement will be paid by the City. In order to receive benefit under this Article, the
employee must report any claims to his or her supervisor prior to the end of the shift on
which the incident occurred unless such report is not possible or practical at that time.
(The only exception is for contact lenses when an employee is under medical
necessity.)



19.5 City agrees to abide by applicable OSHA regulations includi
installation of eyewash stations in or near hazardous areas and
hazardous assignments sufficient to ensure the safety of all

ARTICLE 20
TRAVEL ALLOWANCE

lot limited to,
if crews on

is.

20. 1 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE

Employees who are temporarily assigned to perform work away from their
normal City location at a distance which requires expenditure for public transportation
and accommodations shall be reimbursed for the following travel expenses as
applicable.

a. The cost of the mode of transportation, as determined by City, used by
employee.

b. The rental of accommodations in a clean motel or hotel selected by the employee
if reservations are not in advance by City.

c. The City will provide the employee with a reasonable per diem cash advance
prior to the commencement of such travel. All legitimate and reasonable
business expenses that exceed the per diem cash advance, which are
documented by receipt, shall be reimbursed by the City. Such per diem cash
advance shall be credited to the payment of the above expenses and shall not be
deemed an addition thereto.

20.2 No employee will be required to use his or her personal vehicle in order to
perform his or her job duties or to otherwise conduct City business, unless specifically
agreed to by the City, the Union, and the employee.

ARTICLE 21
INSURANCE BENEFITS

21. 1 HEALTH INSURANCE

All insurance coverage currently in effect under this article shall remain in force
during the term of this Agreement.



ARTICLE 22
RECLASSIF1CAT10N

22. 1 ENTITLEMENT

An employee group of like employees may request a reclassifi^lfl^p study
through their Department Head if they believe that since their job dagM>tiSns and
specifications were last drafted, their duties and responsibilities^v^Ranged so
significantly both in number and in variety as to cause an ina^9®5Tworkload demand.

22.2 PROCEDURES

The Department Head may submit a request, or in the event the Department
Head refuses to do so, the employee may submit a request to the City Clerk for a
reclassification study. The City Clerk will proceed within 30 days of receipt of such
request to investigate the classification status of the position, and reasonably attempt to
conclude the investigation within 90 days after receipt of the request and provide the
Department Head and the employee with a written decision which shall include the
reasons for such decision,

22.3 EFFECTIVE DATE

If the position is reclassified, the effective date of the reclassification shall be retroactive
to the date of request unless the affected department cannot absorb the cost of the
reclassification in its approved budget without a budget augmentation.

22. 4 DiSPUTE OVER CLASSlFICATiON

In case of a dispute between the parties to this Agreement as to the application
of this articl. e the dispute shall be determined in accordance with the grievance
procedure set forth in Article 10 of this Agreement. It is understood disputes under this
Article shall commence at Step II.

ARTICLE 23
DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

As a general policy, discipline shall be administered or imposed to fit these
circumstances on A basis of progressive discipline. No discipline shall be imposed
except for just cause.



23. 1 PERSONAL REPRIMAND

In a minor offense an oral reprimand may be given to the employee.

23.2 WARNING LETTER

A letter of warning may be given to the employee and the employee will be given
the opportunity to sign the warning letter in relatively serious cases. The employee has
up to 15 days to write a rebuttal to the letter of warning and remain in the file until the
letter of warning is removed. Copies of the letter shall be filed with th^^iployee's
service record in the employment department and one signed cop^g1^|tl1&e furnished to
the employee. The letter of warning shall remain with the emplgjigl^^rvice record for
a period not to exceed one (1) year; at which time such lettey^W®fite'removed and
thereafter no further reference will be made to it.

23.3 SUSPENSION

Where the events is a serious one the City may, on written notice to the
employee and to the Union, unless an employee has first instructed the City not to send
such notice to the Union, suspend the employee from work without pay according to the
gravity of the offense and the previous record of the employee concerned. The
employee will be given the opportunity to sign the suspension notice before being
submitted to the employee's personnel file. The employee has up to 15 days to write a
rebuttal to the written suspension notice and remain in the file until the written
suspension notice is removed. Copies of the notice shall be filed with the employee's
service record in the Personnel Department and one signed copy shall be furnished to
the employee. A written notice of suspension will remain in the employee's service
record. After one year, however, the employee may request of his/her Department
Head that the notice of suspension be removed from his/her record.

23.4 DEMOTION AND DISMISSAL

When other forms of discipline or corrective action have proved ineffective, or
when the seriousness of the offense or conditions warrant, the department may demote
or dismiss an employee for cause.

23. 5 SPECIFICIT/ OF CHARGE

All disciplinary actions, except oral reprimand, shall be given to the employee in
writing and shall state the date and nature of the offense, and include any rule,
regulation, ordinance, law or policy violated as clarification. The written charge shall be
signed by both the Department Head and the employee. However, the employee's



signature does not constitute an admission of guilt, but merely an acknowledgement of
receipt of the charge.

23.6 Unless an employee has first instructed the City not to send a copy of any
disciplinary action against the employee to the Union, the City shall send a copy of any
disciplinary action, except personal reprimand, to the Union within five (5) calendar days
of such being issued to the employee.

ARTICLE 24
LAY-OFF POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Whenever there is a lay-off due to lack of work or lack
employees in the bargaining unit, the procedures set forth in tj

24. 1 DEFINITIONS FOR THIS ARTICLE ONLY

of lat affects
Ie shall apply

As used in this article only, unless the context otherwise requires the words in
terms listed below, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section.

a. "City seniority. " City seniority shall be calculated on the basis of the date of hire.

b. "Regular employee". Any employee who has attained regular status but is
serving a new probationary period for any reason, is grouped with regular
employees for lay-off purposes.

24. 2 The City shall determine what positions will be affected by a lay-off.

24.3

a. In the event the City has an opening for a new or reinstated position,
employees shall be recalled in the reverse order of their lay-off.

b. Any employee laid off shall be eligible for recall and rehire for a period of
one year.

c. The City agrees to re-employ laid off employees from the eligible list,
provided such employees meet the minimum qualifications required for the
new or reinstated positions.

d. Upon recall and re-employment, an employee shall be credited with City
seniority accrued prior to lay-off.



24.4 NOTICE TO UNION

Whenever it is determined that a lay-off of employees may occur because of lack
of work or funds the City shall give written notice of the lay-off, including the specific
reason(s) such action is necessary and the estimated length of the lay-off period, to
the Union at least seven (7) calendar days prior to the effective date of notification
to employees.

24.5 NOTICE TO EMPLOYEE(S)

All regular employees to be laid off shall be given written notice,
least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the effective date.

^
i^l^fch lay-offat

24.6 SEQUENCE OF LAY-OFF
<5

Within the job classification(s) selected for lay-offwith the department or division,
the following sequence of (ay-off shall occur:

a. Temporary and probationary employees within the job classification selected
for lay-off shall be laid off first.

b. Thereafter, the employee(s) with the least job classification seniority in the job
classification selected for layoff shall be laid off next.

c. Regular employees shall be laid off only after those lay-offs within paragraph
(a) of this provision have been exhausted.

24.7 VACANCIES

Whenever possible, employees will be permitted to fill available vacancies,
provided the empoyee meets minimum qualifications and any necessary tests. If
offered, the employee must submit his/her decision in writing within seven (7)
calendar days of notification.

24.8 BUMPING

a. Bumping rights shall be exercised in the following sequence of steps:

Step 1 "A regular employee who has received a lay-off notice may replace
an employee in the same job classification, in another division within the



same department, if the employee has more job classification seniority
than the employee to be displaced.

Step 2-lf a regular employee who has received a lay-off notice is unable to
exercise bumping rights at Step 1, the employee may replace an
employee in the same job classification, in another departmen%[f the
employee has more job classification seniority than they emj^yife to be
displaced.

Step 3-lf the employee is unable to exercise bumpi^l^Tits at Step 2, the
employee may replace an employee in a lower job classification within the
same job classification series, first in the same department, second in
another department, if the employee has more city seniority than the
employee to be displaced.

Step 4- If the employee is unable to exercise bumping rights at Step 3 the
employee may replace an employee in a lower job classification within
another job classification series, in the same or other department, if he
has more City seniority than the employee to be displaced and meets the
minimum qualifications for the other position.

a. An employee electing the exercise bumping rights shall assume the
grade of the employee being bumped and the step closest to his, the
employee exercising the bumping right existing salary at the time of the
layoff.

b. Any employee who is bumped shall have the right to exercise bumping
rights in accordance with the provisions of this section. The decision to
bump must be submitted in writing within seven (7) calendar days of
the notification.

c. Whenever it is determined that lay-off of employees shall occur the
City agrees to supply current city seniority lists and job classifications
series seniority lists to the Union for the jobs being affected.

24. 9 COMPUTING SENIORITY: TIES

When job classification seniority is equal among employees in the same
job classification, ranking of those employees shall be determined by City
seniority. When job classification seniority and City seniority are equal, ranking of
those employees shall be determined by drawing lots.



24.9 RECALL

a. The name of an employee who has been laid off shall be placed on the
re-employment list and shall be recalled in the inverse order in which
the employee was laid off. Persons on such a list will be offered
appointment to an opening in the job classification or equated job
classification or any vacancy for which the employee is qualified and
no new employee will be hired until all qualified employ^ifin lay-off
status desiring to return to work shall have been offere^tfie 'position.
The employee must provide the employer with any ad^§§'s change
while waiting for recall.

b. Notice of recall will be made in writing by certified
address of record.

I to employee's

c. An employee who is sent notice of recall must respond within ten (10)
working days of the receipt of the notice of certification for recall.

d. An employee recalled to his former or equated job classification must
report for re-employment on the date established by the department
head or be considered to have abandoned his recall rights so long as
said date is beyond ten (10) working days from the date of receipt of
the recall notice.

e, An employee recalled to a job classification with a lower salary rate
than his previous job classification may refuse such position and
remain eligible for recall. In the event that an employee accept such a
position, the employees name will be removed from the re-employment
list.

f. An employee on lay-off accrues no additional sick leave or annual
leave. When an employee is recalled from layoff and re-employed, he
is considered to have continuous service credit for computation of
future earned annual leave. Sick leave will be reinstated in an amount
equal to that as of the date of the empioyee lay-off.

g. Employees on a re-employment list shall retain eligibility for recall for a
period of two (2) years from the date their name was placed on the list.

h. Upon returning to his original job classification, an employee shall
retain his accrued time for merit increase if rehired within one (1) year



ARTICLE 25
EDUCATION EXPENSES

25. 1 PAY AND EXPENSES FOR RELATED TRAINING

The City shall pay the full cost of tuition, books, and other reasonable
expenses incurred by an employee in connection with any course, workshop,

25.2

seminar, conference or in-service training session an employ<
request of the City and which is related to the employee's pr<
responsibilities. The employee shall not be compensated fo
the regular work day. Meals, lodging and transportation,
provided in Article 20.

EDUCATION INCENTIVE

ikes at the
)nal

spent beyond
ie reimbursed as

The City shall recognize an employee's completion and application ofjob-related
formal education before 7-1-2021 with an annual stipend, to be paid on the first pay
period of the fiscal year, in addition to regular salary. The Mayor or his designee shall
approve all certifications and degrees to determine job-related applicability. Proof of
satisfactory completion must be presented to the City for this stipend to be paid in one
of the following:

1. Technical Certification $50.00
2. Secondary or Advanced Certification $75. 00
3. AA Degree $100. 00
4. BA or BS Degree $200. 00

NOTE: CDL is not included as a technical certification.

25.2.a EDUCATION INCENTIVE

The City shall recognize for all degrees and certification received after 7-1- 2021,
on a one time basis, and employees completion an application ofjob-related formal
education with a one time stipend, to be paid on the first pay period after receipt of the
employee's completion of the employment related formal education. The Mayor or his
designee shall approve all certifications and degrees to determine job-related
applicability. Proof of satisfactory completion must be presented to the City for the
stipend to be paid in one of the following:

1. Technical Certification

2. Secondary or Advanced Certification
3. AA Degree
4. BA or BS Degree

$500. 00
$750. 00
$900. 00
$1000. 00



NOTE: CDL is not included as a technical certification.

25. 3 The City strongly supports higher education for its employees. The City agrees to
reimburse an employee for costs incurred for tuition and required books and materials
under the following conditions:

1. One course per quarter or semester. Course has been pre-approved for
reimbursement by the City Mayor or his designee; and

^s
"B" or

agree that
iployee.

2. The employee has successfully completed the course with
better and has presented proof of payment for costs. The,
purchased books and maten'als shall be the property o^

ARTICLE 26
INVOLUNTARY DEMOTION

26. 1 INVOLUNTARY DEMOTION

When an employee is involuntarily reduced to a lower job classification, the
salary of the employee shall be determined as provided in the salary schedule, but in no
case shall the employee suffer a reduction in salary

ARTICLE 27
VACANCIES

27. 1 NOTICE

Notice of all vacancies and/or promotional vacancies within the city shall be given
to all employees of the city through briefings or otherwise and shall be posted on the
bulletin boards within the City departments for a period of not less than fifteen(15)

calendar days prior to the last date for application or the date scheduled for testing,
whichever is earlier. Notice shall contain the following information:

a. Title and job description of the position;

b. All minimum education requirements including education, employment, training
or experience criteria, and whether equivalent factors will be recognized; for



current employees' seniority will be considered with the minimum eligibility
requirements listed above;

c. Identifying preference or priority will be given two employees; current employees

identified as having a preference or priority must still meet minimum eligibility

requirements set forth in paragraph b;

d. Whether there will be competitive testing and. if so, the day, the time and place of

the tests, the nature and scope of the test subject matter and any reference

material or sources upon which the test is based.

e. Whether the test will consist of written, oral and/or physical deg^^lration

components and the relative weight to be given to each in sc^ifthe test

results;

f. Whether test results can be reviewed by applicants and iT^6, what appeal rights
exist.

g.

ARTICLE 28

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALThLPROGRAMS

28. 1 OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH PROGRAMS

City shall establish safety and health programs and maintain an effective and

comprehensive Occupational Safety and health program.

28. 2 REST PERIOD

Any regular probationary employee who, as the result of a call out or work

assignment, has worked at overtime rates between his/her regular quitting time and his/

her next regular starting time on regular work days, shall be entitled to a rest period but

not limited to the following conditions:

1. If he or she has worked eight (8) hours or more at overtime rates

he/she shall be entitled to a rest period of not less than nine (9)
consecutive hours.



2, If he/she has worked a minimum of two (2) hours at overtime

rates and such work extends beyond nine and one half (9 Vz]

hours after his regular quitting time, he/she shall be entitled to a

rest period of nine consecutive hours upon completion of such

overtime work.

3. If he/she has worked a minimum of two (2) hours after 12:00

midnight at the overtime rate and such work commences later

than nine and one half (9 and Vs) hours after his/her regular

quitting time he/she shall be entitled to a rest period of nine (9)

consecutive hours upon completion of such overtime

4 Rest periods as provided above, shall commence

completion of the employee's overtime work orjQsJfert of his/her

regular work hours whichever occurs first.

ARTICLE 29

C.S.O. AND DISPATCHER

29. 1 Employees required to wear a designated uniform during the work day shall be

allotted an allowance as currently provided ($300 dispatchers and Police Services

Assistants, $400 C. S. O. ) this annual allotment is to be used for purchase, upkeep and
cleaning of uniforms.

29. 2 SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL

An employee whose assigned shift requires working swing shift or graveyard shift

shal receive, in addition to the compensation provided in the salary schedule in effect,

the following shift differentiai pay;

Swing Shift 6% during the entire shift

Cover Shift 6% during the entire shift

Graveyard Shift 8% during the entire shift



The supervisor shall designate the hours, which constitute swing shift and

graveyard shift. The City will provide two weeks' notice to affected employees and the

Union before any change is made in the hours, which constitute a shift. The Union may

file a grievance if any dispute is not resolved when the parties convene.

ARTICLE 30

CONTINUITY OF SERVICES

30. 1 STRIKE/LOCKOUT PROHIBITION

The City and Union recognize the desirability of continuous and unint^^ted

operation of city services during the normal year and the avoidance of dis^O^which

threatened to interfere with such operations as provided in NRS 288. ^W8fore, the

parties agree that there shall be no strike by the Union or lookout by th1rCity over a

bargaining dispute during the duration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 31

EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

31. 1 CHANGES IN AGREEMENT

For the term of this Agreement, no change shall be made in any provision of this

Agreement or in any other working condition that is a mandatory subject of bargaining,
unless by mutual written consent of the parties hereto. !n the event either party desires
to amend this Agreement, such party shall give written notice to the other expressly

stating what the proposed amendment shall be. The parties shall meet within two weeks

of such notice and negotiate over the proposed amendment. If no agreement is

reached concerning the proposed amendment, no change to the existing agreement
shall occur



31. 2 SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement or any application thereof to any employee is
finally to be contrary to the law, then such provision or application shall be deemed

invalid, to the extent required by such decision, but all other provisions or applifiations
shall continue in full force and effect. If such provisions exist, which are so h^y-^t the

request of either party, negotiations shall immediately commence in ords[. ?@Effer said

section(s) to provide the benefit(s) according to the intent of the partly

31.3 DUPLICATION AND DISTRIBUTION

Reasonable number of copies of this Agreement shall be printed at the expense
of the City within thirty (30) days after the Agreement is signed. Copies shall be
available to employees upon request.

ARTICLE 32

DURATION OF AGREEMENT

32. 1 EFFECTIVE PERIOD

This Agreement shall be effective as of date of execution of this Agreement and
shall continue in full force and effect until June 30th, 2024 consistent with the provisions
of NRS 288.

32.2 RENEWAL AND REOPENJNG OF AGREEMENT

Provided that the union continues to be supported by a majority of the eligible
employees in the unit, this agreement will automatically be renewed and will continue in

force and effect for an additional period of one year unless either party gives notice to
the other party, in accordance with NRS 288, of its desire to reopen certain provisions of
this agreement and, or add provisions to this agreement, and to negotiate over the
terms of such provision. In the event a successor Agreement is not agreed upon before



termination date of this Agreement, all provisions of this Agreement shatftffnain in full

force and effect until an Agreement is reached. All salaries, benefits la^vorking
conditions agreed upon in the successor Agreement will be retro^B^to the

termination date of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the city and the Union have caused these presents to be
duly executed by their authorized representatives.

City of Fallen Operating Engineers
Local Union NO. 3

Ken Tedford, Mayor

Reviewed and approved by:

Don Lattin, Legal Counsel



3.0% 2021-2022 CITYOFFALLON
Pay Schedule

STEPS

GRADE

10
11

12

13
14

15

$11.31
$13.65
$15. 93

$18.26
$20. 57

$22.90
$25. 19
$27.52
$29.84
$32. 15
$34. 44

$36. 77

$39.06
$41.35
$43. 70

$11.59
$13.99
$16.33
$18.72
$21.08
$23.47
$25, 82
$28. 21

$30.59
$32.95
$35.30
$37.69
$40. 04

$42.38
$44.79

$11.88
$14.34
$16.74
$19. 19

$21.61
$24.06
$26.47
$28.92
$31.35
$33.77
$36.18
$38.63
$41. 04

$43. 44

$45.91

$12.18
$14.70
$17.16
$19.67
$22. 15

$24.66
$27. 13

$29. 64

$32. 13
$34.61
$37.08
$39.60
$42.07
$44.53
$47.06

$12.48
$15.07
$17. 59

$20.16
$22.70
$25.28
$27.81
$30.38
$32.93
$35.48
$38.01
$40.59
$43. 12

$45.64
$48. 24

$12. 79
$15.45
$18.03
$20. 66

$23.27
$25. 91

$28. 51

$31. 14

$33.75
$36.37
$38. 96

$41. 60

$44.20
$46. 78

$49.45

$13.11
$15.84
$18. 48

$21.18
$23.85
$26.56
$29.22
$31.92
S34.59
$37. 28
$39.93
$42.64
$45.31
$47.95
$50. 69

$13.44
$16. 24

$18.94
$21. 71

$24.45
$27. 22

$29. 95
$32. 72

$35.45
$38.21
$40. 93

$43.71
$46. 44

$49. 15

$51.96

I

$13.78
$16,65
$19. 41

$22.25
$25.06
$27. 90

$30.70
$33. 54

$36.34
$39. 17

$41. 95

$44. 80

$47. 60

$50. 38

$53. 26

2 Meter Reader

Maintenance Worker I - Conv Ctr

Street Sweeper

3 Maintenance Worker I Parks

Maintenance Worker II Sanitation

Secretary Convention Center
Maint Worker - Convention Center

Meter Technician

CSO Custodian

Trash Collection

Gate Attendant Landfill

4 Maint & Setup Coord. Conv Ctr
Bldg & Grounds Maint Worker

5 Accounting Clerk

Heavy Equipment Operator

Landfill/TransferStation/Parks Maint. Worker

Police Support Assistant

Heavy Equipment Operator
Maintenance Worker Streets

6 Administrative Assistant

Court Clerk

CSOI
Fire Apparatus Mechanic

Marketing & Communications Coord.
Facilities Maintenance Technician

Maintenance Worker II Parks

Maintenance Worker II Landscape

Engineering Tecnnician

Maintenance Worker Streets & Safety

7 Admin. Coord. Convention Center

Dispatcher

Executive Secretary

Maintenance Worker II Water/Streets

Pool, Parks, Gym Coordinator

Public Works Administrator

Building Inspector
Court Clerk II

8 CSOII
Fire Apparatus Technician

Plant Operator I

Water/Wastewater Plant Operator
Mechanic

. Lineman

$44. 87 | $45. 99

9 Fire Marshall

Supervisor Paid Personnel

Plant Operator 1+Safety
Record Manager

Lineman

Troubleman

Engineering Inspector

FireApparatusTech

10 Civil Defense Coordinator

Public Service Maintenance Supv.
Director of Convention Ctr

Plant Operator II

11 Public Service Supervisor

12 Electric Depart. Supervisor

* Lineman

Journeyman Lineman



December 20, 2021

Agenda Item 12

Consideration and possible action to approve
negotiated agreement between the City ofFallon
and the Fallon Peace Officers Association to be
effective from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2024
(Pursuant to NRS 288. 153, the proposed agreement
and any exhibits or other attachments to the
proposed agreement are available to the public on
the City's website, fallonnevada. gov^ and at the
City Clerk's Office^ 55 West Williams Avenue^
Fallon^ Nevada. ) (For possible action)



CITY OF FALLON
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Agenda Item No.

DATE SUBMITTED: December 13, 2021

AGENDA DATE REQUESTED: December 20, 2021

TO: The Honorable City Council

FROM: Sean Richardson, City Clerk/Treasurer

SUBJECT TITLE: Consideration and possible action to approve negotiated agreement between
the City of Fallen and the Fallen Peace Officers Association to be effective from July 1, 2021 to
June 30, 2024. (Pursuant to NRS 288. 153, the proposed agreement and any exhibits or other
attachments to the proposed agreement are available to the public on the City's website,
fallonnevada-gov, and at the City Clerk's Office, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallen, Nevada.)
(For possible action)

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: (Check One)

( ) Resolution
(X) Formal Action/Motion

( ) Ordinance
( ) Other - Review & Discussion

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to approve negotiated agreement between the
City ofFallon and the Fallen Peace Officers Association be effective from July 1, 2021 to June
30, 2024.

DISCUSSION: The proposed agreement is attached in both clean and redline versions.

FISCAL IMPACT: Adoption of the proposed negotiated agreement will result in an increase of
salaries as provided in the agreement.

FUNDING SOURCE: Various

PREPARED BY: Sean Richardson, City Clerk/Treasurer



MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN ^̂
^

THE CITY OF
FALLON

AND THE

FALLON PEACE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION

DURATION:

July 1, 2021-June 30, 2024



AGREEMENT

ARTICLE I. PARTIES

This Agreement is made by andbetweenthe City ofFallon, amunicipal corporation of
the State ofNevada, hereinafter referred to as "City", and the Fallen Peace Officers Association,
abargaining unitas defined in Nevada Revised Statues (NRS) 288. 028, hereinafter referred
to as "Association" and is effective from July 1,2021 to June 30,2024

ARTICLE II. AUTHORIZED AGENTS

For purposes of this Agreement, the following are the authorize

A. For the City:
Mayor, City of Fallen
Fallon City Hall
Williams Avenue
Fallen, Nevada 89406

B. For the Association:
Fallen Peace Officers

Assoc. Negotiating
Committee P. 0. Box
1731
Fallen, Nevada 89406

ARTICLE III. RECOGNITION

The City recognizes the Fallen Peace Officers Association as the sole collective
bargaining agent for all sworn officers under the rank of Captain who are employed by
the City within the Fallen Police Department.

ARTICLE IV. ASSOCIATION DUES

The City agrees to deduct from the salaries of employees who are members of the
Association and to remit the same to such officer as may be designated by the Association all
dues which may, from time to time, be required by the Association for employee membership
therein, provided that:

A The association shall submit to the City a complete listing of all
members of the Association, which said listing shall continue in
full force and effect until an amended listing is submitted to the
City



B. That such deductions shall be made only with respect to employees
whose names appear in the listing or listings described in the
preceding Subparagraph and only with respect to such employees
who have executed and delivered to the City a written authorization
for such deduction, which said written authorization shall be 01
form prepared by the City.

C. The Association shall certify to the City, in writing, the alSljjlt of
dues for each member of the Association, and shall fu^^Sertify
to the City any changes in amount of such dues not less fRan thirty
(30) days prior to any such change.

D. The Association shall indemnify the City against any and all liability
arising from any action taken by the City under the provisions of
this Article.

ARTICLE V. RIGHTS OF CITY EXEMPTED FROM AGREEMENT

The City retains, solely and exclusively, all of the rights, power and authorities held or
exercised prior to the execution of this Agreement, save and except as herein expressly
limited, including, without limitation, those matters enumerated in NRS 288. 150(3), NRS
288. 150(4) and NRS 288. 150(5). All existing provisions of the Fallen Municipal Code and
the General Orders of the Fallon Police Department, not inconsistent therewith, are hereby
ratified and confirmed.

ARTICLE VI.

B.

PROBATIONARY PERIODS

Upon initial employment or re-employment, all employees
shall serve a probationary period of twelve (12) months, during
which time the employee may be discharged from his
employment without cause, hearing, or right of appeal. Such
probationary period may be extended, for cause, subject to the
employee's right of appeal, as hereinafter specified. Employees
that are required to attend a basic POST Academy will have
their probationary period extended twelve (12) months from
their date of graduation.

Upon promotion of any employee to a classification with a higher
salary schedule, the employee so promoted shall serve a
probationary period of twelve (12) months, during which time
such employee may be returned to his previous classification
without cause, hearing or right of appeal. Such probationary period



may be extended, for cause, subject to the employee's right of
appeal, as hereinafter specified.

C. As a disciplinary measure and in lieu of discharge, under
circumstances which would justify such discharge, an employee
may be placed on terminal probation for a period not-to-exc
twelve (12) months, provided that such discipline is imposS^in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement, during w]^(3S|!fee
such employee may be discharged from his employi^^^Kithout
cause, hearing or right of appeal.

ARTICIE VII. SALARIES

Effective July 1, 2021, employees shall be compensated at Three Percent (3%) above the Pay
Schedule as attached.

Effective July 1, 2022, employees shall receive a salary increase of Two and a Half
Percent (2. 5%).

Effective July 1, 2023, employees shall receive a salary increase of Two and a Half
Percent (2. 5%).

A The City shall pay all Public Employee's Retirement System
payments during theterm of this Agreement.

B. Employees shall be paid a shift differential of six percent (6%) for
those employees assigned to work between 1400 hours and 2200
hours, and a differential of eight percent (8%) for employees
assigned to work between 2200 hours and 0600 hours.

C. The City shall compensate each employee who is placed in a stand-by
status, Two Dollars ($2. 00) per hour for each hour assigned to stand-
by.

D Any Peace Officer assigned to perform training of other officers by
the Chief of Police shall be entitled to receive an additional Five

Percent (5%) of his regular pay for actual time spent training.

E. Special Assignment Pay - An employee will receive
an additional five percent (5%) of his regular pay for
assignment to Detective, Task Force Investigator or
SRO.



F. Spanish Speaking Incentive Pay. An employee shall receive
$500. 00 annually with proficiency based on being conversant in
Spanish.

G. Employees hired that are required to attend the basic POST
Academy will receive a wage 10% less than Grade 8, Step A.
Upon successful graduation from the academy, the employee will
advance to Grade 8, Step A.

ARTICLE VIII. SALARY INCREASES

For the duration of this contract permanent employees shall receiy,
at the start of the payroll period after which either of the following shall hi

icreases in salary
iccurred:

A Twelve (12) months from the date of initial employment. Each
employee's original hire date shall be the employee's anniversary
date. In the eventuality of a promotion, the original hire date will
remain as the anniversary date. When the probationary period
associated with the promotion has successfully passed, the
increased compensation that should have come as a result of
passing one's anniversary date while the individual was on
probation, will be paid in a lump sum.

B Twelve (12) months from the date of any previous step increase.
Step increases shall be based upon merit and shall not be
considered as longevity increases. Any period of probation
imposed under Article VI. C. above, shall be excluded in
computing the time periods hereinabove set forth in this Article.

Any period of extended probation under Article VI. A., or Article
VI. B above, shall be excluded in computing the time periods
hereinabove set forth in this Article.

Any period of extended probation under Article VI. A., or
Article VI. B above, shall be excluded in computing the time
periods herein above set forth in the Article. In the event that an
employee is denied a step increase for which he would be
eligible under the terms of this Article, the employee shall be
informed, in writing, of the reason for such denial. Such denial
is subject to appeal by the employee under the procedure
hereinafter set forth.



ARTICLE IX HEALTH INSURANCE

A The City shall continue its policy of permitting employees to
participate in the group health plans offered to all City
employees, and the City will continue to pay the employee's
portion of the City's base policy or an equivalent amount
toward the approved health plan.

B. Dependents of employees may be included in said gro^j^lth
insurance plan, provided:

1. Such dependents qualify for coverage uncWsaid plan;

2. Such dependent coverage is available under said plan;

3. The employee requests such dependent coverage in
writing; and

4. The employee agrees to pay all premiums charged for
such dependent coverage, which said premiums shall
be deducted from the employee's salary, pro-rated on
an annual basis.

C. The City agrees to implement a plan under Section 125 of the
Internal Revenue Code to permit employees to avail themselves
of the insurance tax benefits provided in that Section; in the
event that any tax deduction taken by any employee under such
plan shall be disapproved or disallowed by the Internal Revenue
Service, the employee so affected shall indemnify the City
against any and all liability as a result thereof.

D. Employees who are unable to schedule their yearly Heart/Lung exam
asprovided for in NRS during their normal working hours shall be
compensated at the overtime rate for actual hours required for the
exam(s).

E At the request of an employee, who is assigned to Range Duties for
aperiod of thirty (30) days or more, the City shall provide Hearing
and Lead Level tests at City expense.

F The City shall establish a City-wide joint labor/management health
insurance advisory committee, comprised of two (2) labor
representatives selected by the Association; two (2) management
representatives; and two (2) labor representatives selected by any
other recognized bargaining unit. The labor representatives shall



serve without loss of compensation. Thejoint labor-management
health insurance committee shall meetat least quarterly.

The City shall establish a City-wide joint labor-management
safety advisory committee, comprised of two (2) labor
representatives selected by the Association; representatives
selected by any other recognized bargaining unit. The labor
representatives shall serve without loss of compensation. The joint
labor/management safety committee shall meet at least quarterly.

ARTICLE X. UNIFORM ALLOWANCE

A. Upon initial employment, each employee shall be provided with
uniforms, leather goods and safety items required for the
performance of the employee's duties at the sole cost and expense of
the City.

B. Such items shall be maintained and replaced by the employee, as
required, atthe sole cost and expense of the employee.

C. Twelve (12) months after the initial empl oyment of the employee, the
City agrees to pay to the employee fifty percent (50%) of the uniform
allowance established in Subparagraph D. below as partial
reimbursement of the sums expended by the employee under the
provisions of Subparagraph B. above.

D Commencing one (1) year after his initial employment, the City
agrees to pay to each employee the sum of one thousand three hundred
fifty dollars ($1, 3 5 0.00) per year for uniform care, maintenance and
replacement, said sum to be paid by separate check on the first pay
day in July of each year. The City shall recognize their obligation to
provide this allowance, as designated, in atimely manner.

E Upon request by an employee and at the discretion of the Chief of
Police, the City shall be authorizedtorepairorreplace itemsofpersonal
propertywhichhavebeendamagedwhile the employee isonduty. This
section is not intended to provide for repair or replacement of items
damaged through negligence on the part of the employee. The intent
of this section is to provide relief when items such as, but not limited
to the following are damaged as a result of unusual circumstances
such as physical assault: eye-glasses, watches, dentures, and
clothing. It is also atthe discretion ofthe Chief of Police asto the value
placed on the items which are being repaired or replaced.



ARTICLE XI ACTING PAY

A. Any employee may be temporarily assigned to serve in an acting
capacity in a position higher in pay grade than that in which such
employee is regularly employed

B. An employee assigned to fill the position of the absent employee shall
receive ten percent (1 0%) over and above his/her regular salary for the
time so assigned.

ARTICLE XII. EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PAY

A. The City shall provide full reimbursement for the tuition fees and
course required books up to two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) per
year for classes with earned grade of B or better, associated with
taking P.O. S.T. required classes or college courses necessary to
obtain a career related degree. The selection of classes and tuition
reimbursement shall be pre- approved by the Police Chief

The City shall recognize their obligation to provide this allowance, as designated, in a
timely manner.

ARTICLEXIII:

B.

HOURS

As determined by management, the work period shall conist
of 80 hours through a two week period, which shall include
a lunch period not to exceed thirty (minutes) and two (2) rest
periods not-to-exceed fifteen minutes each.

The rest periods provided in Subparagraph A. above, shall not
be taken within one (1) hour of the time in which the employee
starts or ends his shift or within one (1) hour of the employee's
lunch break, and may not be accumulated or used to supplement
any other provision herein contained for vacation, sick leave or
other time off.

C. Employees shall berequiredtoprovidetheirown transportation to
and from the Fallon City Hall at the beginning and end of each shift.



ARTICLE XIV. OVERTIME

A. Overtime is defined as that time worked, as authorized and directed by
management, which exceeds eighty (80)hoursduringanytwo(2)week
period, including leave time taken in place of scheduled work hours
during that same two (2) week period. Annual leave, sick leave,
approved holidays and compensatory time off shall be considered
hours worked for purpose of computing overtime.

B. Overtime shall be compensated as follows:

1. Salary for such overtime at a rate one an'
theregularratefor employee who w^

Tf (1-1/2) times
overtime; or

2 Time off for such employee, in addition to all other time off
provided inthisAgreement, equal to one and one-half(l -1/2)
the amount of such overtime or "compensatory time off at the
option of management.

C. Overtime may be accumulated foreach employee in a CTO bank
up to a maximum offorty-eight (48) hours.

D. Any time accumulated by an employee in his CTO bank may be
used by the employee for additional time off, upon approval by
management; any employee who has accumulated more than forty-
eight (48) hours in his CTO bank will be required to take such
additional time off to reduce the hours in said bank to forty-eight
(48) hours or less before the next pay period.

E. Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit orrestrictthe authority of
management toscheduleor reschedule any employee's work time in
order to operate within budgeting restraints imposed upon the City
or its departments.

F To the extent possible, additional time off, required under Paragraph
E. ofthis Article, shall be scheduled to extend the employee's normal
weekend, and at least, twenty-four (24) hour notice ofthe scheduling
of such additional time off shall be given to the employee.

G. Physical Fitness Incentive Program.
The City of Fallon recognizes the importance of our officers to
maintain a level of fitness that will keep them physically able to
perform the requirements of their jobs. The goal of the Physical
Fitness Incentive Program is to establish a fitness and incentive
program to encourage department members to exercise regularly
and maintain a healthy lifestyle. By encouraging officersto maintain



ARTICLE XV.

a minimum level of fitness, the department aims to promote the
general wellness of our officers, decrease the incidents of injury and
promote in them a great confidence and ability in performing their
daily activities.

1. Effective July 1, 2021, and semi-annually thereafter, sworn
employees will be provided the opportunity to participate in
a physical fitness test based on the Nevada POST Physical
Fitness Test (PFT). Employees meeting the N^ada POST
Physical Fitness Test Standards for the Cei®c9teon for a
Category 1 Peace Officer will receive '^^centive of
twelve (12) hours of compensatory tii

2. If an employee is unable to participaiMh the scheduled PFT
testdueto illness, injury, vacation, court, orotherreasonable
conflict, the employee may request, in writing a make-up
test without penalty so long as the makeup test is completed
and passed atthe next scheduled make-up testdate.

3. Scheduling ofthe PFTtesting, makeup tests and/or retests
shall be determined by the Chief ofPolice orhisdesignee.

4. Recognizing that participation in this incentive program is
purely voluntary, those employees who optnotto participate or
do not meet the minimum PFT Standards, will not be deemed
"physically unfit for duty."

HOLIDAYS

A. The City shall recognize no legal holidays, except those
established by the Nevada State Legislature, as set forth in
the Nevada Revised Statutes.

B. The treatment of and compensation of employees forwork
performed on such holidays shall be in accordance with
the NRS 236. 015.

1. Holidays shall include :

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King's Day
President's Day
Memorial Day Labor Day
Independence Day

Nevada Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Family Day
Christmas Day
Juneteenth

10



Any day that may be appointed by the President of the United States, the Governor of the
State of Nevada, or the Fallen City Council for public fast, thanksgiving or as a legal holiday except
for any Presidential appointment ofthe fourthMonday in October as Veteran's Day.

If January 1, July 4, October 31, November 11 or December 25th falls upon a Sunday, the
Monday following must be observed as a legal holiday or upon a Saturday, the Friday preceding
must be observed as a legal holiday.

>Sundays and Holidays:
~those employee's shall be

nving their regular days off,
Ie paid holiday pay on the actual

For employees whose normal work schedule includes Sat
should any of the above holidays fall on an employee's regular
entitled to observe those holidays on the day preceding or the
depending on staff demands; otherwise, those employees shi
holiday

2. Any employee of the City who is required to work on
any of the above-named holidays, due to an emergency
or orders of the Department Head, shall be granted 8
hours of holiday pay. That pay is separate and
independent of the employees scheduled shift. Hours
actually worked on the holiday will be paid at the rate
of two and one-half times (2-1/2) the employee's
normal hourly pay rate.

ARTICLE XVI. VACATION

All employees who are employed on a full-time basis shall
accrue vacation time in accordance with the following
schedule:

Cnntirmoiis Service Anrmal Accnied Hniirs

1st through 4th years
5th through 9th years
10th through 14th years
15th through 24 years
25th years and thereafter

12 days
17 days
21 days
24 days
27 days

96 hours
13 6 hours
168 hours

192 hours
216 hours

On an employee's 15thand 201hy ear anniversary dates, he shall receive one (1) additional
week (5 days) ̂ additional hours of vacation for those years fora total of twenty-nine(29)daysof
vacation. On the employee's 16thand 21st anniversary the vacation of twenty-nine (29) days shall
revert back to twenty-four (24) days 192 hours consistent with the other sections of this agreement.

11



Additionally, the City shall provide an additional one-time payment of forty (40) hours of
vacation to each employee upon completion oftwenty-five (25) years of service with the City.

B.

c.

D.

ARTICLE XVII.

Part-time employees who work at least twenty (20) hours per
week shall accrue vacation time in accordance with the

schedule contained in the preceding Paragraph of the Article,
pro-ratedonthebasisoftherelationship between the numberof
hours worked per week by such employee and the normal full-
time workweek of forty (40) hours.

Probationary employee shall accrue vacate ̂ me in
accordance with the schedule contained in Pa^tee&h A. ofthis

Article, butnovacationtimemay be take^^^g^uch employee
until after completion of six (6) months^sytice with the City.
Vacation time may be taken only v^th the approval of
management.

At the end of any fiscal year, employees who reach or
exceed the maximum accrual of two hundred forty (240)
hours, shall be allowed a reasonable amount of time to
schedule time off to reduce their vacation leave balance.

Any permanent employee whose employment is terminated
shall be paid for all vacation time accrued at the time of
such termination; in the event that such termination is
caused by the death of the employee, such payment shall be
made to his heirs, executors, administrator or assigns.

Annual leave requests shall be awarded based on seniority

with the police department and in said officer's current rank
structure.

SICK LEAVE

A. Twelve (12) working days 96 hours of sick leave shall be
granted for each twelve (12) months of employment, up to
a total accumulation of one hundred eighty (180) working
days 1,440 hours.

B. Sick leave may be granted to an employee during his
probationary period as it is accrued. Sick leave need not be
used for dental care unless unusual absences are necessary
or the employee is required to be hospitalized. Sick leave
will not be allowed for illness, injury or other physical
disability resulting from misconduct or excessive use of

12



C. alcohol or narcotics. No sick leave benefits of any kind
will be granted after termination of employment.

D. Sick leave maybe used in cases of serious illness in any
employee's immediate family requiring his attendance, and
shall be for the actual time required.
Sick leave can be used to take care of whomever an
employee deems important.

E. An employee who is receiving workmen's ̂ c^t)^sation
may, at his option, take sufficient sick leavg ̂ ^Ae up the
difference between the workmen's corg^^^on payment
and his regular wage. When his si%, '^tve account is
exhausted, he will receive workmen's compensation
payments only.

F Employees claiming sick leave may be required to file
competent written evidence that they have been absent
as authorized. If employees have been incapacitated for
a major portion of the sick leave time taken they may be
required to provide evidence of being physically,
mentally or emotionally able to perform their duties
before returning to work. Claiming sick leave when
physically fit or when not otherwise eligible for sick
leave within the provision of this section may be cause
for disciplinary action, including cancellation of sick
leave benefits, suspension, demotion or termination.
When sick leave is needed, the employee shall notify his
department head or other superior if the department
head is not available. Such notice shall be given at the
earliest possible time and preferably before the start of
the scheduled working hours. Failure to make a diligent
effort to give such notice may result in payroll deduction
for the time taken.

G. Employees retiring from City service under Nevada Public Employees
Retirement System shall beentitledatthetimeofretirementto
alump-sumpayment of accrued sick leave on the following
basis:

Years of Employment with the
City

Less than 10 years

10 to 20 years

over 20 years

Percentage of accrued sick leave
allowed for payment

35%

50%
75%

13



H. Employees who reach the maximum accrual of one hundred
and eighty (180) days 1,440 hours shall be granted an
additional eight (8) hours, of vacation time for each sixteen
(16) hours of sick leave accrued beyond 1,440 one hundred
eight (180) days. Each conversion of sick leave to vacation
shall return the employee's balance to the 1,440 hours one
hundred eight (180) day maximum, and will not otherwise
increase the maximum accrual.

I. Conversion of Sick Leave Into Retiremen»%tedits. An

employee who is eligible for purchase ofs^^^credits under
the Nevada Public Employee's Retirem^t'^Mem ("PERS")
and applicable law, may at his or h^^^^i convert unused
sick leave into service credit under ̂ gS.S at the rate of one

hour of sick leave, subject to the following conditions and
limitations:

a) Employees must have a cumulative total of at least 400
hours of unused sick leave to be eligible for conversion.
Accrued sick leave hours of an employee in excess of 400
may be converted into retirement service credit.

b) An employee's conversion of unused accrued sick leave
into retirement service credits shall be in increments of at
least 160 hours, subject to a maximum annual limit of 280
hours (7 work weeks).

c) Employees desiring to convert unused accrued sick leave
into retirement service credit shall submit a written request,
on a City approved form, to the City Clerk on or before
December 1 of each year. If the employee meets all of the
conditions set forth above, then City shall deduct the
designated amount of accraed sick leave from the
employee's account and proceed to purchase retirement
service credit from PERS in an amount equal to the number
of hours elected to be converted by the employee.

d) For those employees who elect to purchase retirement credit
under PERS and subsequently retire under PERS while
employed by the City, shall be eligible to convert their sick
leave balance in writing to retirement credit on an hour for
hour basis for the balance of retirement credit available for
purchase not to exceed the statutory maximum of five (5)
years. In the event that a sick leave balance remains after
converting as much of the employees sick leave hours to
retirement credit as may be allowed under PERS, the
remaining balance shall be eligible for the privileges
granted under the negotiated agreement between the FPOA
and the City of Fallen.

14



e) Upon retirement under PERS while employed by the City,
an employee may elect in writing to convert their unused
sick leave into retirement service credits up ̂o a maximum
of 680 hours.

0 The benefits granted under this Parag®E>R|tnay be used in
combination with the benefits grai^ ̂ ^r the negotiated
agreement between the FPOA ai^W^ity of Fallen.

ARTICLE XVIII VOLUNTARY LEAVE DONATION

Employees may donate leave from their accmed balances to other employees who have suffered
an extended illness or injury, subject to the following conditions:

1. Donations shall be no less than one (1) day increments.

2. All donations of leave shall be strictly voluntary and recognized on a case
by case basis.

3. The Chief of Police shall monitor and administer the Leave Program.

4. This article shall not be used as the basis for additional leave accrual
requests.

ARTICLE XIX. MILITARY LEAVE

Employees shall be entitled to military leave, as now or hereafter authorized by law, to
participate in National Guard orothermilitary training. There shall be no loss of seniority, sick leave or
annual leave rights during such leave. An employee shall receive his reguiarpay, notto exceed fifteen
(15) calendar days per year, while on such leave. Where required by the nature of an employee's
military obligation, leaves without pay in excess of fifteen (15) calendar days may be granted for
military service intime ofwar, national or state emergency, as proclaimed by the proper federal or state
authorities, with reinstatement to be made at the expiration of such required period of leave as now or
hereafter authorized by law.

ARTICLE XX.

B

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

Any employee shall be entitled to bereavement leave,
not-to-exceed three (3)days, upon the death of any
person important to the employee.

Bereavement leave shall not be charged against an
employee's other leave balances.

15



C. Additional bereavement leave may be allowed by
management, but such additional leave shall be charged
against the employee's accrued sick leave time,
compensatory time or annual leave time, in that order

ARTICLE XXI. LONGEVITY PAYMENT AND ELIGIBILITY

A longevity benefit is available to eligible bargaining unit employee^pf ^eligibility determination

date for longevity is the last complete pay period that occurs^ll^y^e first payday in December.

Eligibility determination and longevity payment payout^iy^ccur annually the first payday in

December of each fiscal year. If, on the eligibility determination date, an employee has completed

six years of full-time continuous, regular City service in a bargaining unit position, s/he will

receive $200 annually payable on the first payday in December. This payment is not an adjustment

to an employee's base salary but a lump-sum payout that is subject to PERS contribution. For each

additional year of full-time, continuous service in a bargaining unit position after the sixth year

that has been achieved by the eligibility determination date, the employee will receive an additional

$100 annually payable as above. Longevity payments shall be capped at a level for completion of

25 years of service and an employee with more than 25 years of service is paid the same amount

as those who have completed 25 years of service. The annual payments are set forth in the table

listed below.

1-5 None

200.00

300.00

400. 00

500. 00

10 600.00

11 700. 00

12 800. 00

13 900.00



14 1000.00

15 1100. 00

16 1200. 00

17 1300. 00

18 1400. 00

19 1500. 00

20 1600. 00

21 1700.00

22 1800.00

23 1900.00

24 2000. 00

25 2100. 00

a. Regular, full-time, part-time, or intermittent employees covered under the Agreement who

have had a break in service [i. e., separation, resignation, termination, retirement, etc. ], will begin

a new, initial eligibility period starting with the date of their last re-employment or reinstatement

as a regular employee of the City in a bargaining unit position. However, employees who have

been separated as a result of an involuntary reduction in force who are re-called to a bargaining

unit position within two years will not be required to begin a new eligibility period. Regular

seasonal employees' furlough periods (periods of leave without pay during the "off season) will

not be considered as breaks in service, but only regularly scheduled and paid hours in City

employment in a seasonal bargaining unit position will be used to determine when a regular

seasonal employee has completed a year of service as described below in 7 . 1 (C).

b. Periods of employment as a temporary, hourly, or time limited employee

are not creditable for longevity.

c. An employee who has had continuous service as a regular employee in a bargaining unit

position but who has worked less than full time or without pay during any part of an eligibility

period may receive credit for regularly scheduled hours in a pay status. That is, periods of regular

17



continuous seasonal, part-time or intermittent employment will be credited on a regularly

scheduled, paid-hour basis. Employees who, during their regular continuous employment period

with the City, have periods of regular service that is less than full-time (40 hours per week) must

complete at least 1900 hours in a pay status to be credited with a full year of continuous service.

XXII. UNION LEAVE ^
On July 1st of each year, the Union shall be credijg^g^f forty (40) hours of

administrative leave to be used for Union business by em^^^its during working hours
without loss of pay. The Chiefs approval must be obtained before administrative leave may be
used, but such approval may not be unreasonably withheld. It is understood the work needs of
the City shall be recognized when granting leave. Administrative leave is separate and distinct
from release time for negotiations. When the City and Union agree to conduct negotiations
during normal work hours, the City shall allow release time, with pay, to those employees
who are members of the Unions negotiation committees. Administrative leave will not be used
for researching or handling a specific grievance.

ARTICLE XXIII. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

A. Any grievance, which may arise between Association,
or any of its members, and the City, with respect to the
interpretation or application of any of the terms of this
Agreement shall be determined by the provisions of
this Article. The Association can assert a grievance if
it affects more than one member of the Association.

B. Definitions:

2.

A grievance is a complaint by an employee
based upon an alleged violation,
misrepresentation, inequitable application or
misapplication of a specific provision of the
Agreement. The Grievance procedure set forth
herein shall not be available for or utilized in any
matter involving employee discipline and
discharge, which is subject to appeal pursuant to
Article XXVII of this agreement.

An aggrieved person is an employee asserting a
grievance.



C. The proceedings and actions taken as a result of the
initiation and processing of a grievance pursuant to this
Article shall be kept as confidential as may be
appropriate at any level of the procedure.

STEP 1.
The employee concerned mu st within ten (l^\^%fng days
from the day he knew, or should have kg^^^^Tthe act or
condition on which the grievance is bas8§y?nformally take
up the grievance with his supervisor to whom he is directly
responsible. If the employee does not present the
grievance within the ten (110) working days as provided
above, the employee shall be deemed to have waived the
grievance of the act or condition.

STEP 2.
If, within ten (10) working days after the grievance is first
taken up, and the aggrieved person is not satisfied with
the disposition of the problem through informal
procedures, he shall submit the claim as a formal grievance
in writing to his supervisor. The supervisor shall within ten
(10) working days render a decision and the reasons
therefore in writing to the aggrieved person, with a copy to
the Police Chief, or his designee.

STEPS.
If the Grievance is not settled at STEP 2, itmay be submitted
in writing to the Police Chief, or his designee within ten (10)
working days after receipt of the supervisor's written
decision. In the event that the supervisor shall fail to act
within the time allotted, the grievance shall be submitted to
the Police Chief, or his designee, within ten (10) working
days of the date said decision was due. Within ten (10)
working days after receipt of the written appeal for a
hearing, the Police Chief, or his designee, shall meetwith
the aggrieved employee for the purpose of resolving the
grievance. ThePolice Chief; orhisdesignee, shall withinten
(10) working days of the meeting render his decision and
the reasons therefore in writing to the aggrieved
employee, Supervisor, and the Mayor.

STEP 4.
If the grievance is not settled at STEP 3, it may be
submitted in writing to the May or, or his designee, within
ten (10) working days after receipt of the Police Chiefs
written decision. In the event that the Police Chief, or his

19



designee, shall fail to act within the time allotted, the
grievance shall be submitted to the Mayor, or his
designee, within ten (10) working days of the date said
decision was due. Within ten (10) working days after
receipt ofthe written appeal for a hearing, the Mayor, or his
designee, shall meet with the aggrieved employee for the
purpose of resolving the grievance. The Mayor, or his
designee, shall, within ten (I 0) working days of the
meeting render his decision and the reasons therefore in
writing to the aggrieved employee and the Police Chief.

STEP 5.
If the grievance is not settled at STEP 4, it may be submitted
in writing to the City council within ten (10) working days
after receipt of the Mayor's, or his designee's written
decision. Within twenty (20) working days after receipt of
the written appeal for a hearing, the City Council shall
meet with the aggrieved employee for the purpose of
resolving the grievance. The City Council, within ten (10)
working days of the hearing shall render their decision and
reasons therefore in writing to the aggrieved employee and
the Police Chief.

STEP 6.

If the grievance is not settled at STEP 5, the grievance may
be submitted to arbitration within ten (10) working days of
the date of the receipt ofthe written decision ofthe Mayor,
or their designee, or the date the decision was due,
whichever event occurs first, by either party upon written
notice ofthe other party. Within fifteen (15) working days,
the arbitrator shall be selected from a list of seven (7)
names supplied by the American Arbitration Association.
In selecting the arbitrator, each party shall alternate in
removing one (1) name from the list until only one (1)
name remains. A coin toss shall decide which party shall
strike the first name.

The Arbitrator so selected shall confer promptly with the
Mayor, or his designee, and the aggrieved employee, shall
review the record of prior hearings, and shall hold further
hearings with the aggrieved employee and such other
parties in interest as the arbitrator shall deem requisite.

20



D. The arbitrator's decision, which shall be final and binding
on the parties, shall be rendered within thirty (30) days after a
transcript, if required, is submitted. The arbitrator shall not
have the authority to modify, amend, alter, add to or subtract
from any of the provisions of this Agreement.

E. The provisions of this Article shall apply only to grievances
arising after the effective date of this Agreement; any
grievances pending on the effective date of this Agreement
shall be processed and resolved in accordance with the
practices and procedures of the City in effect prior to this
Agreement. If the grievance does not meetthetime steps, the
grievance is to be considered terminated.

F Notwithstanding the aforementioned procedure, any
individual employee shall have the right to present
grievances to the City and to have such grievance adjusted
withoutthe intervention of the Association, provided thatthe
adjustment shall not be inconsistent with this Agreement.
Written notification of action taken will be provided to the
Association.

ARTICLE XXIV. DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

The tenure and status of each employee is conditioned upon
compliance with reasonable standards of personal conduct
and job performance; failure of an employee to conform to
such standards shall be grounds for appropriate
disciplinary action against or discharge of such employee.
Disciplinary action or discharge may be based upon
violations ofthe provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes,
the Fallen Municipal Code, the General Orders of the
Fallon Police Department or other rules, regulations and
policies duly adopted by the City; in addition thereto,
disciplinary action or discharge may be based upon any of
the following grounds:

1. Failure of the employee to perform any required
duties.

2. Disability of the employee.

3. Unexcused absence or habitual tardiness of the
employee.

21



4. Abuse by the employee of the property or
equipment of the City.

5. Substandard performance by theemployee.

6. Commission by the employee of a felony or other
public offense involving moral turpitude.

7. Failure of the employee to report completely and
truthfully all acts or statements of the employee
while engaged in the performance of his official
duty.

8. Any false statement made by the employee in his
application for employment or other proceedings
relating to his being hiredby the City.

9. Any other act which is incompatible with service
to the public, or which tends to bring the City or
the Fallon Police Department into disrepute or
lessen the ability of the Fallon Police Department
to perform its lawfully mandated functions.

B. "Discipline, " as used in this Article, shall mean:

1. Written reprimands, which shall consist of a written
statement of the basis for such reprimands and which
shall be placed in the employee's personnel file.

2. Short suspensions, which shall consist of suspensions
from duty, without pay, for a period of less than three
(3) days.

3. Longer suspensions, which shall consist of
suspensions from duty, without pay, for a period of
three (3) days or more.

4. Demotion is defined as any employee who is reduced
in rank.

5. Discharge, as used in this Article, means the
permanent termination of an employee's
employment with the City

22



6. No other action taken by the City or its officers or
employees with respect to any employee shall be
considered "discipline" for purposes of this Article.

C. The provisions of this Article shall not apply to any
employee of the City who is a probationary employee or
on probationary status, as set forth in Paragraphs A or C.
of Article VI. above.

ARTICLE XXV.

A.

B.

c.

ARTICLE XXVI.

WRITTEN REPRIMANDS

All written reprimands shall be served on the employee,
with a copy of said reprimand to be placed in the employee's
personnel file.

In the event that the employee disagrees with the reprimand,
he may request a review thereof by the Chief of Police or his
designee, by requesting such review, in writing, not more
than three (3) working days following his receipt of the
written reprimand, which request shall set form the basis
for the employee's disagreement; within three (3) working
days after receipt of such request, and upon such
investigation and inquiry as he may deem appropriate, the
Chief of Police or his designee, shall respond, in writing, to
the employee's request; copies ofthe employee's request and
the response of the Chief of Police or his designee, shall be
included in the employee's personnel file; the response of
the Chief of Police or his designee, shall be final.

A written reprimand shall be effective for a period of twelve
(12) months from the date thereof, and shall thereafter be
sealed, together with any related materials included in the
employee's personnel file under the preceding Paragraph of
this Article, and shall have no further effect, save and
except that said written reprimand may be reopened and
used in any subsequent discharge proceeding against the
employee or in any litigation arising therefrom or in any
litigation arising out of the events giving rise to the
reprimand or any litigation respecting the actions or conduct
of the employee during his employment by the City

SUSPENSIONS AND DEMOTTONS

Prior to the imposition of any discipline defined in
Subparagraphs B.2., B.3., or B.4., of Article XXIII above,
the Chief of Police or his designee, shall serve a written

23



notice upon the employee setting forth the proposed
disciplinary action, which notice shall include:

1. A statement of the charges upon which the propo sed
disciplinary action is based.

2. A summary of the evidence upon which the charges
are based.

3. A statement advising the employee of his right to
inspect and copy all evidence in the possession of
the department in support of the charges.

4. An explanation ofthe employee's right of appeal, as
hereinafter set forth.

5. A statement informing the employee of his right to
representation in all subsequent proceedings.

B. Withinten (lO)workingdaysafterserviceontheemployeeof
the notice described in the preceding Paragraph of this
Article, the employee or his representative, may request, in
writing, a meeting with the Chief of Police, to answer the
charges contained in such notice and to present any evidence
in opposition thereto and any argument in opposition to the
proposed disciplinary action.

C. Upon receipt of a request, as described in the preceding
Paragraph of this Article, the Chief of Police shall fix the
date and time, not more than ten (10) working days after
the receipt of such request, for a meeting with the
employee, or his representative.

D The meeting shall be informal, and the formal rules of
evidence shall not apply; the employee, or his
representative, may appear at the meeting and present
evidence and argument in opposition to the charges and the
proposed disciplinary action.

E. Within ten (10) working days of the meeting, the Chief
of Police shall serve upon the employee, or his
representative, a decision, in writing, affirming,
amending or reversing the proposed disciplinary action.

24



ARTICLE XXVII.

E. All records of short suspensions, and any proceedings
related thereto under this Article, shall be sealed three (3)
years after the completion of such suspension; all records
of longer suspensions and demotions, and any proceedings
related thereto under this Article, shall be sealed five (5)
years after the completion of such suspension or^%)tion,
such records, after being sealed, shall havgjlf'ftrther
effect, save and except that said records ig^iyireopened
and used in any subsequent discharge^RI|l|Mmgs against
the employee or in any litigation arising1| refrom or in any
litigation arising out of the event or events giving rise to
the suspension or demotion or any litigation respecting the
actions or conduct of the employee during his employment
by the City

DISCHARGE

A. Prior to the discharge of any employee, the Chief of
Police or his designee, shall serve a written notice upon
the employee setting forth the proposed discharge,
which notice shall include:

I. A statement of the charges upon which the
proposed discharge is based.

2. A summary ofthe evidence upon which the charges
are based.

3. A statement advising the employee of his right to
inspect and copy all evidence in the possession of
the department in support of the charges.

4. An explanation ofthe employee's right of appeal, as
hereinafter set forth.

5. A statement informing the employee of his right to
representation in all subsequent proceedings.

B. Within ten (10) working days after service on the
employee of the notice described in the preceding
Paragraph of this Article, the employee or his
representative may request, in writing, a meeting with
the Chief of Police to answer the charges contained in

25



such notice and to present any evidence in opposition
thereto and any argument in opposition to the proposed
discharge.

C. Upon receipt of a request, as described in the preceding
Paragraph of this Article, the Chief of Police shall fix
the date and time, not more than ten (10) working days
after the receipt of such request, for a meeting with the
employee, or his representative.

D. The meeting shall be informal, and the formal rules of
evidence shall not apply; the employee, or his
representative may appear at the meeting and present
evidence and argument in opposition to the charges and
the discharge.

E. Within ten (10) working days after the meeting, the
Chief of Police shall serve upon the employee, or his
representative, a decision, in writing, affirming,
amending or reversing the discharge.

ARTICLE XXVIII. APPEALS

Any party dissatisfied with a final determination of the
Chief under Article XXV.E. or Article XXVI.E. above
may appeal such determination to the Mayor, by filing a
Notice of Appeal with the City Clerk, or his designee,
not more than ten (10) working days after the date of
service of such determination, as specified in Article
XXV.E. and Article XXVI.E. above.

B. Any party may request a meeting with the Mayor within
ten (10) working days of filing notice. The Mayor may
request pertinent documents and hold an informal
meeting with all parties concerned. A written decision
shall be provided within ten (10) working days of the
actual meeting.

C. Any party dissatisfied with the determination of the
Mayor under Article XXVII.B. above may appeal such
determination to the City Council by filing a Notice of
Appeal with the City Clerk not more than ten (10)
working days after the date of service of such
determination as specified in Article XXVII.B. above.

26



D. Upon receipt of a Notice of Appeal, as specified in the
preceding Paragraph of this Article, the Mayor shall
transmit the Notice of Appeal, together with all other
papers and documents in his possession relating to the
appeal, to the City Clerk.

E Upon receipt of the Notice of Appeal specified in the
preceding Paragraph of this Article, the City Clerk shall
at the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting
advise, in Executive Session, the City Council of the
receipt of the Notice of Appeal. Within ten (10) working
days of the City Council meeting where the City Council
was advised of the Notice of Appeal, the City Council, or its
designee, shall give notice to the representative ofthe Peace
Officers Association ofitsappointmenttotheAppealsBoard.
The Peace Officers Association shall also, within ten (10)
working days of the City Council meeting, meet and have
its representative appoint one (1) member to the Appeals
Board. The two (2) representatives shall jointly agree upon
the selection of a third member in order to comprise the three
(3) member Appeals Board.

F. TheAppealsBoardshall, withinthirty(30)daysfromthedate
the final member of the Appeals Board is appointed,
convene for the purpose of hearing the appeal. The City
Clerk shall forthwith notify the employee, or his
representative, the Chief of Police or his designee, the
Mayor, all members of the City Council and the City
Attorney ofthe date and time fixed for such hearing.

G. The hearing before the Appeals Board shall be a hearing
de novo, and formal rules of evidence shall not apply;
employee, or his representative, and the Chief of Police or
his designee, represented by the City Attorney, may appear
at the hearing and present evidence, witnesses and
argument in support of and in opposition to the appeal. A
record of the hearing before the Appeals Board shall be
made, by recording or stenographic transcription as
determined by the City Council. The cost of such record
shall be borne by the City.

H. Any party dissatisfied with the decision ofthe Appeals Board
may appeal that decision to the City Council, by filing a
notice of appeal with the City Clerk not more than ten (10)

27



working days after the date of service of the decision of the
Appeals Board. The City Clerk shall, upon receipt of such
notice of appeal, ascertain the cost of obtaining a transcript
of the hearing before the Appeals Board, and shall notify the
party filing the notice of appeal of such cost. The party filing
the notice of appeal shall, within ten (10) days, deposit with
the City Clerk the cost of such transcript. Upon receipt ofthe
transcript, the City Clerk shall notify allparties of its receipt,
and shall provide copies thereof to all members of the City
Council.

I. Review of the City Council shall be on the record made
before the Appeals Board, provided, nevertheless, that the
City Council may require the presentation of additional
testimony and evidence and/or oral argument in support of
and in opposition to the appeal. Notice of such further
proceedings shall be given to all parties not less than ten (10)
working dayspriorto such proceedings.

J. The City Council shall, within thirty (30) days afterreceipt of
the transcript referred to in Paragraph G. of this Article or
within thirty (30) days after further proceedings permitted
under the preceding Paragraph ofthis Article, serve upon the
employee, or his representative, the Chief of Police or his
designee, and the City Attorney, a decision affirming,
modifying or reversing the decision of the Appeals Board.
The decision of the City Council shall be in writing and shall
state in full the reasons for the decision. The decision of the
City Council shall be final except for judicial review. All
hearings required under this Article may be continued, for
good cause shown, upon application of any party entitled to
notice thereof; such application shall be addressedtothe City
Council and the City Council shall, within its sole and
exclusive discretion, grant or deny such applications.

ARTICLE XXIX. MAFNTENANCE OF BENEFTTS

All benefits of employment currently provided by the City
to its employee and specifically set forth or altered by this
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect during the
term of this Agreement, except as hereinafter set forth in this
Article.

B. In the event that the City should determine, during the term
of this Agreement, that any existing employee benefits
must, because of extraordinary circumstances, be modified

28



c.

D.

ARTICLE XXX.

or eliminated, then and in that event, notice of such
modification or elimination of benefits shall be given to the
Association by the City, together with a statement of the
extraordinary circumstances requiring such modifications
or elimination.

The Association may, within thirty (30) days following the
receipt of any notice given in accordance with the
preceding Paragraph of this Article, request a meetingwith
the Mayor concerning such proposed modification or
elimination of benefits.

Following the meeting described in the preceding Paragraph
of this Article, the Mayor may affirm, modify, or reverse the
modification or elimination of employee benefits; this
decision of the Mayor shall be in writing, serviced upon the
Association and shall be final, except for judicial review.

NO STRIKE CLAUSE

The Association will not promote, sponsor, or engage against the City, any strike slowdown,
interruption of operation, stoppage of work, absence from work upon any pretext or excuse not
founded in fact, or by any other intentional interruption of the City, regardless of the reason for
doing so, and will use its best efforts to induce all employees covered by this Agreement to comply
with this pledge.

ARTICLE XXXI.

A.

DEFINITIONS

As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have
the meaning herein ascribed to them:

1. "Management" shall mean the Chief of Police of the
City of Fallon, together with such officers of the
Fallen Police Department as may be, from time to
time, designated by the Mayor of the City of Fallen

2. as supervisors or managers within the Fallen Police
Department.

3. "Department" shall mean the Fallon Police
Department. "Employee" shall mean all sworn
officers of the Fallon Police Department of the rank
ofPatrolman, Sergeant and Lieutenant.

4. "Permanent employee" shall mean any employee
who has completed his initial probation and is not
serving a period of disciplinary probation.

29



B.

ARTICLE XXXII.

5. "Days" shall mean employee workdays when related
to any action required by an employee, and shall
mean weekdays when related to any action required
by the City, the department or management.

As used in this Agreement, the masculine form ofpronouns
shall include the feminine.

SEVERABTLTTY

B.

ARTICLE XXXIII.

A.

B.

c.

ARTICLE XXXIV.

If any Article, paragraph or clause of this Agreement is
held to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, all
remaining Articles, paragraphs and clauses shall continue
in full force and effect.

All provisions of the laws of the State of Nevada and the
provisions of the Fallen Municipal Code relating to the
subject matters contained in this Agreement shall continue
to apply to the City and employees unless such laws or
provisions are contrary to the terms hereof.

ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

The Association may place a bulletin board in the squad
room, so the Association may post materials relating to its
business.

The City shall provide space in the squad room for the
placement of a filing cabinet(s) necessary for the
Association to perform its activities.

Association members/representatives shall be permitted
to use City phones to make and receive Association
related telephone calls, provided that the telephone use
does not incur additional expense to the City or interfere
with the operation of the City.

LAYOFFS

If the City finds it necessary to reduce the City work force
due to a lack of funds or lack of work, the City may lay off
employees pursuant to this article.

30



B. The City shall notify the Association and the employees
thirty (30) days prior to actual layoff date.

C. Employees shall be laid off, in the order of departmental
seniority. In lieu of being laid off, an employee may
elect to temporarily demote to a lower departmental
position for which they are qualified.

D. The name of every employee laid off or demoted must
be placed on the appropriate re employment list. All
employees subject to lay off shall have precedence over
any other individual applying for a position, providing
they keep the City advised of their current address.
Appointments, of employees subject to lay off, shall be
made in reverse order of lay off and the reappointed
employee must report to work within two (2) weeks or
lose the opportunity for re-employment under this
Article.

E. Employees rehired, within six (6) months after their
layoff, will be entitled to reinstatement of all accrued
leave, which has not been compensated for, that the
employee was entitled to at the time of their lay off.

ARTICLE XXXV. TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall become effective on the first (1st) day of July, 2021, and shall
expire the thirtieth (30th) day of June, 2024

31



CITY OF FALLON
FPOA Salary Schedule

FY2022 to FY2024

FY2021/2022
COLA 3. 0%

STEPS

GRADE B D E I

8 $27. 52 $28.21 $28.92 $29.64 !». $31. 14 $31.92 $32. 72 $33.54
11 $34.44 $35. 30 $36. 18 $37.08, ^ 101 $38. 96 $39.93 $40.93 $41.95

w
^

FY2022/2023
COLA 2.5%

STEPS

GRADE B D H

$28.21 $28.92 $29.64 $30. 38 $31. 14 $31.92 $32. 72 $33.54 $34. 38
11 $35. 30 $36.18 $37. 08 $38.01 $38. 96 $39.93 $40.93 $41. 95 $43.00

FY2023/2024
COLA 2. 5%

STEPS

GRADE B H

8 $28.92 $29. 64 $30. 38 $31. 14 $31. 92 $32.72 $33. 54 $34. 38 $35.24
11 $36.18 $37.08 $38. 01 $38.96 $39. 93 $40.93 $41.95 $43. 00 $44.08

GRADE 8 = Police Officers
GRADE 11 = Police Sergeants


